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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

“Articles”

(48 A1

“Board”

-

“China” or "PRC”

[ B

“"Company”

RAVACTE

“COVID-19"
[COVID-19]

“Directors”

[E %]

"o

"Group”,

"

our Group”,
" or “our”

noou

we”, "us

BN REAE A

" HKICPA”
[(BAEEGFEAE]

"HKS"
%7t )

“Hong Kong”
(&8

RAFRA - BXEZBHAEIN - T5I
AREEER N XPTEURE

the articles of association of the Company approved and adopted on 16
December 2019 with effect from the Listing Date, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time
ARBER2019F12 A6 B/ R R - B LT BB A MHEME R AR
(ARER] - f A H 77 B 20

the board of Directors

55

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the context requires and
only for the purpose of this annual report, references to China do not include
Taiwan, the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China or the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China

REARANME  WMXESAEAERERAFHRM S - stPEOHRER
TEERE PEARAMBEEFEBRERITHRRE KPP EARLMERPIE
AT B R

Kwung’s Holdings Limited
%t 3% IR A PR 2 A

The novel coronavirus disease 2019
2009 BB MR ARE

the directors of the Company

ARAEF

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context so requires in respect
of the period before the Company became the holding company of the
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company and the business
carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors
ARATREEMBAR  XMMXESBERE  RARAKBHBRHEB
RAIMERAR Z AR - KRR RESHE QAR K GRIERME) LA F
NEARENEB

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
R VN

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FEELAEEBET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PREFEFNTHRR
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“Listing”
[T

“Listing Date”
[ A

'

“Listing Rules”

[ET AR A

“Memorandum”

[K#A )

4

“Ningbo Kwung's'

[ 28 57 B 1t

"Prospectus”

[ ERE]

“RMB”
AR

“SFO"

[35 5 K& B E 150
“Share(s)”

[ % 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ % 3R |

U

“Stock Exchange’
[Hgt 22 P

listing of Shares on Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BB P ER £

16 January 2020, date of the Listing
20206 1A16H - L&y H EA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X P RE 75 LR Al

the amended and restated memorandum of association of the Company
conditionally adopted on 16 December 2019 and became effective upon
Listing, as supplemented, amended or otherwise modified from time to time
ARRA 2019512 A16 B AR SR (AL A5 5 LT £ ) VGBI RET
MAEBERRGE  KTRMAE  BRISAEMT BN

Ningbo Kwung's Wisdom Art & Design Co., Ltd. (%8Bt 2R T #EF A
fRA7]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on 4 January
1999, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EREUHERIZERFARAF - PM999F 14BN FREKZIHERA
A WARAARFTNEENB AR

prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2019
ARAR BB A2019F12 A0 Bk =12

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEAEEBARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EBEDENE(ERFZLRAEGRO) & AREET - A EM T A E
i

ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
RRARAFFRR0.001E T H)E#E AR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SRS =IN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERIMARRIDR

RIEZRERDR —Z-TFFH



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. JIN Jianxin (Chairman and executive Director)

Mr. RU Liming (Executive Director)

Mr. TIAN Dong (Executive Director)

Mr. SHAO Patrick (Non-executive Director)

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. YANG Herong (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. ZHOU Kai (Independent non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lau Chung Wai (FCPA (Practising))

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (Chairman)
Mr. SHAO Patrick
Mr. ZHOU Kai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHOU Kai (Chairman)
Mr. JIN Jianxin
Mr. LAl Chun Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YANG Herong (Chairman)
Mr. JIN Jianxin
Mr. LAl Chun Yu

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

(for the purpose of the Listing Rules)
Mr. LAU Chung Wai
Mr. TIAN Dong

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

China Industrial Securities International Capital Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REGISTERED OFFICE

89 Nexus Way
Camana Bay
Grand Cayman
KY1-9009
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 629A, 6th Floor
Star House

No. 3 Salisbury Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

827 Qixiang Road
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited
89 Nexus Way

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman

KY1-9009

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

No. 183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1925

WEBSITE

http://www.kwungs.com

(information on the website does not form part of this annual report)
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89 Nexus Way
Camana Bay
Grand Cayman
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In 2020, the growing path of the market was disrupted by the
unexpected outbreak of COVID-19. Due to the impact of COVID-19,
certain customers requested to postpone the shipment of our
products and some cancelled their purchase orders. However, by
making unremitting efforts in seeking opportunities in response
to the pandemic, the Group continued to leverage on its core
strengths in research and development, design and supply chains,
and maintained close communications with our customers, suppliers
and other business partners to overcome difficulties through joint
efforts. As a result, the Group’s net profit has increased amidst the
slightly declined business results in 2020. To give better return to
our Shareholders, the Group has distributed a special dividend at
the end of 2020.

Amid the emerging domestic fragrance market, in particular
the increasing demands for home products from domestic and
international consumers since the outbreak of COVID-19, the
fragrance and innovative home products are embracing a significant
market opportunity. To seize the opportunity, the Group has
formulated a strategy that the business development of other
innovative home products and home decoration products can be
promoted to enable the Group to tap into the greater daily consumer
goods market. We are positive and confident on the Group’s
performance in the foreseeable future.

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to take
this opportunity to extend my sincere appreciation to all of our
customers, employees and Shareholders. In the new vyear, it's hoped
that we will work together to enhance customer satisfaction, fulfill
the dreams for our employees, and bring greater returns to our
Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a prominent original design manufacturer and supplier
of home fragrance products, innovative home products and home
decoration products comprising our core products such as home
fragrance candles and fragrance diffusers. Home fragrance products
and innovative home products are widely used in people’s daily life.

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately RMB472.2 million, with profit of
approximately RMB40.8 million. Although our revenue decreased
by approximately 5.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to that of 2019 due to the impact of COVID-19, profit
increased approximately 46.6% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to that of 2019. Among these, the sales of
candles (including fragrance candles), home fragrance products
(including fragrance diffusers) and home accessories (including
innovative home products and home decoration products) reached
approximately RMB299.6 million, RMB83.2 million and RMB89.4
million, representing approximately 63.5%, 17.6% and 18.9% of
the Group's total sales for the year ended 31 December 2020,
respectively.

The Group’s products are mainly sold to overseas markets in
more than 20 countries and regions, including France, the United
Kingdom, the Netherlands, Germany, Canada and Australia. In the
first half of 2020, due to the impact of COVID-19, certain customers
requested for postponement of the shipment of our products and
there has been some cancellation of purchase orders from our
customers. However, benefiting from our niche in research and
development in designs and supply chains, and the long-standing,
sound and steady business relationship with our main customers
in Europe, our performance in orders and delivery had rebounded
swiftly under the effective domestic control over the pandemic in
the PRC, with sales of approximately RMB312.5 million in the second
half of 2020 representing an increase of approximately 95.7% from
the first half of the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B E 5 W EE o AT ()

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Moreover, the Group launched an online showroom at the beginning
of the year. The showroom displays various products for customers’
selection and purchase, where our sales team will introduce the
details of the product sizes and prices of the products on the online
showroom. The online showroom has been very helpful for the
Group'’s business in the midst of restrictions on social activities such
as trade fair and exhibition events.

In 2020, the sales of the Group’s self-branded products reached
approximately RMB19.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 56.7% as compared to that of 2019, among which
offline sales reached approximately RMB13.7 million and online
sales reached approximately RMB5.4 million. As at 31 December
2020, the number of self-branded retail stores has increased to 27,
which is an increase of 17 stores as compared to the corresponding
period in 2019. Store sales has increased by 3.3 times as compared
to the corresponding period in 2019. Online sales performance of
self-branded fragrance products has also improved in 2020, with
an increase in sales by 1.4 times as compared to the corresponding
period in 2019.

The Group possesses advanced sizable manufacturing bases and
has a long-term cooperative relationship with suppliers of raw
materials and consumables and contract manufacturers which
forms a comprehensive system of supply chain. In spite of the keen
competition, the Group has further solidified the leading industry
position of the production and sales of its home fragrance candles
and fragrance diffusers over the last year due to self-owned and
controllable cost control in the supply chain and effective pricing
strategies as well as flexible order-taking ability and abundant
production capacity.

The Group has a strong technical research and development team.
As of 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained 74 invention
patent, utility model and appearance design patent. During 2020,
the Group has enhanced the technical research and development
and product development of personal-care products, strived to make
a technology breakthrough in, among other things, ingredients
of essential oils and time of fragrance depositing, and promoted
personal-care daily products with brand-new ingredients at the
market, such as perfume, shampoos, bath foam and moisturisers of
essential oils.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group possesses a design team with extensive experience
and abundant creativity, which can conduct the innovation design
and development of products based on users’ living scenario and
consuming situation, and closely cooperate with partners to optimize
and innovate the products.

The Group possesses advanced sizable manufacturing bases and
has a long-term cooperative relationship with suppliers of raw
materials and consumables and contract manufacturers which forms
a comprehensive system of supply chain. The Group is upgrading
the equipment and technique for production, and actively planning
for the construction of a new production line so as to enhance the
ability of quantitative manufacturing and realize flexible production
effectively based on the customized needs of customers and the
order structure.

In spite of the keen competition, the Group has further solidified the
leading industry position of the production and sales of its home
fragrance candles and fragrance diffusers over the last year due to
self-owned and controllable cost control in the supply chain and
effective pricing strategies as well as flexible order-taking ability and
abundant production capacity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue mainly arises from the export sales of the
Group's candle products, home fragrance products and home
accessories during the year. It decreased by approximately RMB29.0
million or 5.8% to approximately RMB472.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB501.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the cancellation of some purchase orders by the
Group's existing customers during the first half of the year as a
result of the outbreak of COVID-19. In addition, the Group mainly
has export sales to European countries and the purchase orders
are denominated in United States dollars. As such, the depreciation
of United States dollars against RMB during the year ended 31
December 2020 has negative impact on the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E 5 B 2 AT |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEW®E D@

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately RMB25.5 million
or 19.1% to approximately RMB108.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB133.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease in gross profit was mainly
because of the decrease in the Group’s revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Group's gross profit margin decreased to 22.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately 26.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly due to the
depreciation of United States dollars against RMB during the year
ended 31 December 2020 as mentioned above, which resulted in
a decrease in revenue but contributed to a minimal saving in the
production costs of the Group since the majority of the Group’s
suppliers are local enterprises in the PRC and the Group was billed
in RMB.

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly comprises income from
government grants in the PRC and also the rental income earned
from leasing the Group's properties. The increase in other income
during the current year was mainly contributed by the grant from
the local government in the PRC to support the Group against
COVID-19, and also the grant from the local government in the PRC
in reward to the overseas investment in the Group’s PRC subsidiary
during the year ended 31 December 2019. There was also a small
rental income earned in respect of the Group’s building which has
been leased to an independent third party during the year ended
31 December 2020, contributing to the increase in other income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprise payroll costs
for management team and supporting staff, expenses incurred in
relation to the Listing, cost of raw materials consumed for research
and development purpose, depreciation expenses in relation to the
Group's office buildings and office equipment and cost of utilities
for office use.

There was a decrease in administrative expenses of approximately
RMB19.5 million or approximately 27.8% to approximately RMB50.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately
RMB70.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Decrease
in the Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 was mainly due to the non-recurring expenses
incurred in relation to the Listing of approximately RMB18.1 million
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses mainly comprise payroll
costs for staff in the sales departments, sample inspection and
delivery costs, commissions to agents, advertising and promotion
expenses and operating costs for the Group’s retail stores.

There was an increase in selling and marketing expenses of
approximately RMB9.1 million or 106.5% to approximately RMB17.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately
RMB8.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Increase in
the Group’s selling and marketing expenses for the current year was
mainly due to additional advertising costs incurred to promote the
online direct sales channel, costs incurred to establish the online
showroom in response to the outbreak of COVID-19 and also the
operating costs for the newly set up self-operated retail stores.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEW®E D@

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses mainly comprise net foreign
exchange differences, net fair value changes on foreign exchange
forward contracts, net fair value changes on wealth management
products issued by commercial banks and also donation expenses.

The Group recorded net other gains of approximately RMBO.1T million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared to net other
losses of approximately RMB23.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The significant improvement of the net other gains and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due to the
better arrangement made against foreign currency exposure arising
from purchase orders from overseas customers, which are mainly
denominated in United States dollars. Changes in exchange rate
of RMB against United States dollars causes foreign exchange
differences arising from the trade receivable balances denominated in
United States dollars. Such foreign exchange exposure is managed by
entering into foreign exchange forward contracts with the financial
institutions in the PRC. The foreign exchange exposure can be
perfectly eliminated if the maturity dates of the foreign exchange
forward contracts match perfectly with the sales cycle of purchase
orders from overseas customers and if the underlying amounts of
the foreign exchange forward contracts match perfectly with the
total amount of purchase orders from overseas customers. There
has been improvement in determining the maturity dates and also
the underlying amounts for the foreign exchange forward contracts,
resulting in a lesser net foreign exchange losses for the year ended
31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Net finance income/(costs)

The Group’s net finance income/(costs) represents the interest
income earned from financial institutions and the Group’s finance
costs comprising interest charged on a short-term bank loan and also
the interest expense component on the operating lease arrangement
in relation to the Group’s leased production facilities.

There is an increase in the Group's interest income by approximately
RMBO0.8 million or 658.0% to approximately RMB0.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMBO.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was mainly
because of the larger balance maintained at the banks after receiving
the proceeds from the Listing in January 2020.

Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
companies comprising our Group domicile or operate.

(i) Cayman Islands income tax
The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

(ii) BVI income tax

Under the current laws of the BVI, entities incorporated in BVI
are not subject to tax on their income or capital gains.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEW®E D@

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

16

Hong Kong income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Hong Kong has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31 December 2020, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The statutory
tax rate was 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as the utilisation of previously
recognized tax losses. The Group did not derive any income
subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in the PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for the years, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof. The statutory tax rate was 25% for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020.

Ningbo Kwung's was qualified as a “High and New Technology
Enterprise” since 2008 and renewed its qualification in
November 2020, and it is subject to a reduced preferential
corporate income rate of 15% from 2008 until November
2023.

In addition, according to the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was
effective from 2018, during the period from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020 enterprises engaging in research and
development activities are entitled to claim 175% of their
research and development expenses incurred as tax deductible
expenses when determining their assessable profits for that
year. Management of the Group assess that the Group is
eligible to such claim for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

There was an increase in the Group’s income tax expense by
approximately RMB2.5 million or 53.6% to approximately RMB7.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately
RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase
was mainly due to the increase in profit before tax of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The overall effective tax rate of the Group maintained at a similar
level. The effective tax rates for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 are approximately 14.6% and 15.2%
respectively, which are in line with the reduced preferential corporate
income tax rate for the Group’s major PRC subsidiary.

Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted profit
for the year

The Group recognised non-recurring items for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020. To supplement the
financial information prepared and presented in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the adjusted profit
before tax and adjusted profit for the year is also presented below for
the purpose of better analysis on the Group’s financial performance
from its ordinary business.

Such additional financial information is presented as these were
used by the Group’s management to evaluate the Group’s financial
performance by eliminating the impact of non-recurring expenses
in relation to the Listing which are considered not indicative for
evaluation of the actual performance of the Group's business. The
Group's adjusted profit before tax and adjusted profit for the year are
not measures of performance under HKFRSs. It is believed that these
non-HKFRSs measures are a more accurate indication of the Group’s
profitability and operating performance for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020. However, these non-HKFRS
measures should not be considered in isolation or construed as an
alternative to net income or operating income, or as an indicator of
the Group's operating performance or other consolidated operations
data prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The use of non-HKFRSs
measures has material limitations as an analytical tool, as it does
not include all items that impact our profit for the relevant years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B E 5 W EE o AT ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B %5 ] B8 (a0

Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted profit REFABBRBAIGEFN R LCHAEE
for the year (Continued) A g F (a0

The table below sets forth the Group's adjusted profit before tax & & & 7| 7~ &£ @ & £2019512A8318 &
and adjusted profit for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31  20204E12 A318 IF & B & 38 2 % F A%

December 2020: | B 48 58 B Vs A
2019
20194F
RMB'000
ARBFT
Adjusted profit before tax R B BR B AT R A
Profit before income tax KR P13 756 B g A 48,062 32,568
Adjustment for expenses in relation MEEMBBEORAEHARE
to the Listing 512 18,116
Adjusted profit before tax 4R 2 TR B AT s A 48,574 50,684
Adjusted profit for the year RABRFEREF
Profit for the year F N5 A 40,756 27,810
Adjusted for: MUATIEEERAE
(i)  Expenses in relation to the () BAELTORX
Listing 512 18,116
(i) Corresponding tax impact® (i) FAEMBEED = (663)
Adjusted profit for the year P EEF N @A 41,268 45,263

Note 1: The corresponding tax impact is calculated by deducting certain expenses in Htatt -

relation to the Listing incurred by Ningbo Kwung's and applying the tax rate
of 15%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property plant and equipment mainly comprise
net carrying amounts of the office building, production plants,
machinery and the corresponding capitalised renovation costs. There
was a decrease in the net carrying amounts of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment by approximately RMB2.8 million during the
year ended 31 December 2020 which was mainly due to the net
impact of (i) the costs incurred for the renovation of the new
production plants in Yinzhou District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC, for the expansion of production capacity; (ii) transfer out
of a building located in Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
from self-use to lease to independent third parties during the year;
and (iii) depreciation charge for the current year.

Right-of-use assets

The Group’s right-of-use assets comprise net carrying amounts of
the prepaid land use rights for the lands used by the Group’s office
building and production plants, and also the net carrying amounts
of the properties leased by the Group.

Decrease in balance during the year ended 31 December 2020 was
mainly due to depreciation charge in relation to the leased properties
in Yinzhou District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC, during the
current year.

Investment properties

The Group's investment properties represent the building located in
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, owned by the Group. Such
building was used by the Group for production in the prior years and
has been leased to independent third parties as warehouses during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group has completed the
setup of the new production facilities in Yinzhou District, Ningbo
City, Zhejiang Province, PRC, during the year ended 31 December
2020, releasing new and additional production capacity for the
Group. However, the Group encountered a change in demand
on its products during the year ended 31 December 2020 due to
the outbreak of COVID-19. Despite management of the Group is
still optimistic on the business growth of the Group, a downward
adjustment has been made to the forecast on the purchase orders
on the Group’s products in the short run. Accordingly, the Group
arranged short-term leases for the vacant space released from those
old production lines to generate certain rental income, which is
believed to be beneficial to the Group in the short run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEW®E D@

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Inventories

The Group's inventory balance comprises raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods for the Group’s candle products,
home fragrance products and home accessories products. There
was an increase in the Group's inventory balance by approximately
RMB12.4 million or 29.0% to approximately RMB55.0 million as
at 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB42.7 million as at
31 December 2019 which was mainly due to the pile up of some
finished goods which were pending to be delivered to the customers
as at 31 December 2020. The outbreak of COVID-19 has impact on
the freight arrangement across countries resulting in delay in delivery
of finished goods to overseas customers. Most of the Group’s
finished goods have been delivered to the customers up to the date
of this report.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables balance as at 31 December 2020 mainly
represented outstanding balance from the Group’'s overseas
customers. There was an increase in trade receivables balance
before allowance for impairment of approximately RMB17.0 million
or 25.8% from approximately RMB65.9 million as at 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB82.9 million as at 31 December 2020.
The outbreak of COVID-19 caused postponement of some purchase
orders from the Group’s overseas customers from the first half of
the year to the fourth quarter of the year, resulting in delay in
recognising the revenue and the corresponding billings remained
unsettled as at 31 December 2020.

Most of the Group's trade receivables balance were aged within
180 days. The Group experienced limited bad debt issues over the
years and a small provision for impairment of trade receivables of
approximately RMB1.8 million was recorded as at 31 December
2020, which is calculated based on the expected credit loss
percentage for the aged trade receivables balance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

The balance of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
comprises mainly advances to suppliers, deferred costs in relation
to the Listing, recoverable value-added tax and amounts due from
related parties.

There was a decrease in the balance of approximately RMB11.8
million or 42.9% to approximately RMB15.8 million as at 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB27.6 million as at 31
December 2019, which was mainly due to the capitalisation of the
deferred listing expenses upon the Listing in January 2020, and also
higher utilisation of the prepayments to suppliers for purchase of
raw materials in the fourth quarter of the year as a result of higher
production volumes for fulfilling purchase orders from the Group’s
overseas customers.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group arranges foreign currency forward contracts with
commercial banks in PRC in respect of the exchange rate of RMB
against United States dollars in response to the Group’s foreign
exchange exposure arising from the sales to the Group’s overseas
customers, which is denominated in United States dollars.

The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts changed
from an unrealised liabilities as at 31 December 2019 to unrealised
assets as at 31 December 2020 as a result of the an appreciation
of RMB against United States dollars throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

%EEEE?J-E Eﬁi/-\*ﬁ IIE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020
comprised cash deposited into financial institutions in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

There was an increase in the balance of approximately RMB42.9
million or 63.2% to approximately RMB110.7 million as at 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB67.8 million as at 31
December 2019. Such increase in balance was mainly because of the
unutilised portion of the net proceeds raised from the Listing in the
first quarter of 2020.

Trade and other payables

The balance of trade and other payables comprises mainly payables
to suppliers of raw materials, amounts due to related parties and
payroll payables to the Group's employees.

There was an increase in the balance of approximately RMB11.5
million or 24.6% to approximately RMB58.3 million as at 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB46.8 million as at 31
December 2019. The change in balance was mainly due to the net
impact of (i) more purchase of raw materials from suppliers in the
fourth quarter of the year as a result of higher production volumes
for fulfilling purchase orders from the Group’s overseas customers;
(i) settlement of the 2019 yearly bonus to employees during the
year ended 31 December 2020; and (iii) settlement of payables to
professional parties in relation to the Listing during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Lease liabilities

The balance of lease liabilities represents the present value of future
lease payments in respect of office premises and production plants
leased by the Group.

There is a decrease in the balance of approximately RMB3.6 million
to approximately RMB5.9 million as at 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB9.5 million as at 31 December 2019 as a result of
the early termination of the lease arrangement for a warehouse and
also settlement to the lessors during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

Impact from outbreak of novel coronavirus

Due to the impact of COVID-19, the time of people staying at
home prolonged and more emphasis has been placed on a quality
domestic living. Therefore, the sales of candles fragrance products,
as a mental necessity, have boomed in the retail market, which was
significant in certain areas with severe pandemic such as the United
Kingdom. Sales growth in such areas can be obviously reflected in
our results. There is an optimistic expectation that the rapid growing
momentum of the results in the second half of 2020 will continue
in the coming year.

As the emerging momentum of domestic fragrance market and
the continuous growth of demands of international and domestic
consumers in home products due to the outbreak of COVID-19,
an enormous market opportunity has been brought into fragrance
products and innovative home products. To seize that chance, the
Group has formulated a strategy that the business development of
other innovative home products and home decoration products can
be promoted to a bigger consumer market. We are confident on
the Group's performance in the foreseeable future.

Development of our business-to-consumer sales
channel

The Group currently has several business-to-consumer sales channels,
such as retail stores and internet sales, to the retail customers in
the PRC. As at the date of this report, the Group operates 24 retail
stores in the PRC and intends to open more retail stores in the near
future. The Group expects that such expansion plan will strengthen
our brand building strategy and bring forth a better growth of
our sales of candle products, home fragrance products and home
accessories products around the globe.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEW®E D@

FUTURE PLANS

With a view to fuel the Group’s business growth, proactively capture
market opportunities, expand the sales of the Group’s products and
increase the Group’s market shares, the Directors plan to implement
the following measures: (i) establish physical presence overseas to
increase market penetration of the Group’s products, better serve
the Group’s major customers and enlarge the customer base in
the Group’s major market; (ii) strengthen the Group’s research and
development capabilities to enrich the Group’'s product offering
and increase the overall competitiveness; (iii) upgrade the Group's
information system and logistics capacities to increase operational
efficiency; and (iv) enhance the Group’s sales and marketing efforts
to enlarge market share, cultivate brand loyalty and capture potential
business opportunities in markets outside Europe.
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Mr. JIN Jianxin (£ Z 7 5%t 4£), aged 55, is our executive Director,
chairman and the chief executive officer. He is our founder and
joined our Group in January 1999. He is responsible for executing
board resolutions, formulating business development plans and
strategies and overseeing the daily business operation of the Group.
He is the uncle of Mr. Tian and the brother-in-law of Mr. Ru.

Mr. Jin has over 20 years of experience in the manufacturing,
marketing and selling of candle products. He has been the chairman
of the board of Ningbo Kwung's since its establishment and is
primarily responsible for the overall management of Ningbo Kwung's.
Since 2016, he has been appointed as the vice chairman of China
Daily-use Chemical Industry Association (Candle Division) (B H A
TImEEE®)

Mr. Jin graduated from Beijing International Studies University (165
FEZHNHFEZER) with a degree of bachelor of economics in July
1989. He was awarded with the qualification of Senior Economist
by the Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social Security
Department (M T& A T E R ML 2 REEE) in February 2011, In
January 2014, he was named as Culture New Zhejiang Entrepreneur
(XL # AT R) by the Selection Committee of the Culture New
Zhejiang Entrepreneur (L F AT iRAZ =)

Mr. Jin is also a director of Kwung’s Investments Limited, Kwung's
Wisdom (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, Ningbo Kwung’'s and Neobee
Australia Pty Ltd, all of which being subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. RU Liming (ZTIZ B % 4), aged 59, is our executive Director.
He is responsible for formulating the business development plans
and strategies, organising board meetings and executing board
resolutions. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Jin.

Mr. Ru has solid experience in the manufacturing and selling of
candle products. Before joining our Group, he was a deputy factory
director of Shaoxing Kwung's Candles & Giftware Co., Ltd. (#A
EEEH i 212 R HR AR from June 2002 to February 2004
and was responsible for supervising and coordinating the candle
manufacturing and quality control process. In February 2004, he
joined our Group as a deputy general manager of Ningbo Kwung's.
He was appointed as a director of Ningbo Kwung's in June 2015
and was responsible for overseeing the daily operation and assisting
the chairman of the board to formulate the business development
strategies of Ningbo Kwung’s.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EE&H &H‘-EEE (4&)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Ru graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (J#1)T T
% KE) with a diploma of mechanical engineering (1 #I T # £ %
#E %) in October 1996.

Mr. Ru is also a director of ) wf 2 HOEFR AR, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. TIAN Dong (H3R 5 4), aged 41, is our executive Director. He
is responsible for overseeing the financial and capital operation of
the Group. He is the nephew of Mr. Jin.

Mr. Tian has been working in our Group for more than 10 years.
He joined our Group in 2004 as an office administrator of the
performance appraisal office of Ningbo Kwung'’s and was promoted
to supervisor of the information system department of Ningbo
Kwung's in November 2008. Since November 2011, he has been
working as the secretary of the board of Ningbo Kwung’s and has
been responsible for the corporate governance, organisation of the
directors’ and shareholders’ meetings of Ningbo Kwung's.

Mr. Tian graduated from Zhejiang University of Science and
Technology CH#TEIH%EFE) with a degree of computer science and
technology (T & # &I E$7) in June 2002. He also obtained a
master degree of science in distributed systems and networks from
University of Kent in November 2004.

Mr. Tian is also a director of ) S5 HFEZR B AR AT and E

B M LB R AR AR, both of which being wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SHAO Patrick (BBF 5t 4), aged 55, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Shao joined our Group as a director of Ningbo Kwung's
in June 2015. He is primarily responsible for formulating the business
development plans and strategies of our Group.

Mr. Shao has extensive experience in business strategies formulation,
business development and operation. From June 2005 to July 2015,
he was the vice general manager of Guangzhou Shi Xinli Metal
Limited (EM T # & BB R AR]), a brake pad friction materials
manufacturing company and was primarily responsible for the
development of new products and formulation of business strategies
of the company. Currently, he is the vice general manager and
director of human resources department of Zhangjiagang Xinli Metal
Limited GRRE# 1€ BHBBR A 7]), a PRC company engaging in
the manufacturing of brake pad friction materials. He is responsible
for formulating the business strategies and overseeing the daily
operation of the company.

Mr. Shao graduated from Peking University (1t 5 K22) with a degree
of bachelor of Chinese Literature in July 1989.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (BIRF % 4E), aged 44, is our independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 16 December 2019. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Lai has more than 18 vyears of experience in the area of
accounting, auditing and financial management. From July 2000 to
December 2003, he worked as an accountant in Ernst & Young.
From August 2005 to June 2007, he worked as a financial controller
of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited (presently known
as SMI Culture & Travel Group Holdings Limited), a media services
provider listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2366), and was
primarily responsible for assisting in the budget preparation, treasury,
internal control and investor relation matter of the company. From
May 2009 to June 2017, he worked as a company secretary of
Amber Energy Limited (presently known as Puxing Energy Limited),
a clean energy provider in the PRC listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 90), and was responsible for assisting in the listing
and corporate governance matters of the company. Since February
2018, he has become the director of MCGI Consultancy Limited, a
business consultancy firm in Hong Kong, and has been responsible
for the strategic planning, business development and operation of
the company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EERENREERE®@E

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BY ¥ #HITEE @)

(Continued)

Mr. Lai obtained a degree of bachelor of business (accountancy) 22541999 F 8 A B E TR KEH
from Queensland University of Technology in August 1999. Mr. Lai 2 (50 B4 - B 5 £ 520029118
has become a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia since  #£ AR MNEM &AM estal -
November 2002. He was admitted as a certified public accountant ¥ R2004F 1A EBME B St AT HZE
of HKICPA in January 2004 and has become a fellow member of &&IEIER * B2010F R AEFE ST
HKICPA since 2010. EEREE -

Mr. Lai has held directorship in the following listed companies in B AEER KA ZFHENUNTE B LT ARE
Hong Kong in the last three years: TEE:

Principal business

Period Name of entity activities Position held Responsibilities
M EREH TREBED EEOBA BE
October 2019 Tailam Tech Construction Manufacture and sale  Independent non-executive  Providing independent
= Present Holdings Limited of concrete piles and  director advice to the board
(stock code: 6193) commercial concrete of the company
in the PRC
2019F10AEHRK ZMHREZRAERLQA A BIE SRR L BUFHITES RARESERM
(B2 5% : 6193) EBEREAmERT BIER
October 2014 Anxian Yuan China Provision of funeral Independent non-executive  Providing independent
- August 2018 Holdings Limited service in the PRC director advice to the board
(stock code: 922) of the company
2014F10A & ZERETRERARAR RETEEERS BUFHITES RARESERM
2018481 (B 0 R 3%+ 922) BUBR
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. YANG Herong (#%fM & 5% 4), aged 57, is our independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 16 December 2019. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in the area of

finance, investment and management. The following table sets forth
the working experience of Mr. Yang:

Principal business

EE&H &Hrfijﬁ(nﬁ

BYEHITEE @

BHBEE STk BENIERNTES o
M H2019F12 A6 B E ST A B IEMTT
EE - FAEAEEERHEBIER -

BEENEHE REMNERHEHEHFE20
FER - TRIINBRENTIEERE:

Period Name of entity activities Position held Responsibilities
i) ERAW TEXERED EEOBQ BE
November 2007 Chisage Holding Group Investment Chairman Formulating strategies
- Present Co., Ltd (2% and overseeing the
SBBERRA) operation of the
company
007FNAZHE HEZEREEFRRAR RKE BER HERAIRBREE AT
=4
March 2007 Ningbo Chisage Mushang  Retail and brand Chairman Overseeing the operation
- Present Holding Limited (Z )% management of the company
PEREZERERATE)
007F3AEHE ERTPERNERAR ZTERmEER BEER EBERALE
NS
May 2005 Ningbo Zhonghui Property development  Chairman Overseeing the operation
- October 2007 Investment Co., Ltd. and investment of the company
(BERTEREAR
AR)
200558 % ERPEREERAR NEERLIRE EXR EENALE
20074 10H
December 2001 Ningbo Hehe Import & Import and export Chairman Overseeing the operation
= April 2005 Export Co., Ltd. (%) trade of the company
AMEHOFRDR)
2001512 & ERAMELOARRR #£HOEH EXR EERAEE
200554 A
Mr. Yang graduated from Huainan Mining Institute CHEFITEE ) MHI1982F1NF  BEAEEXENEREESE

(presently known as Anhui University of Science & Technology) with
a degree of mine construction (& E R E ) in December 1982.
He also obtained a master degree of business administration from
Nanyang Technological University in May 2010.

REEAREEIADNEHRREY
BRI o 5 R20104E5 A IR T
RE T 78 IR AE + B -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE @)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Since August 2018, Mr. Yang has become a non-executive director of
Mulsanne Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1817), a PRC fashion
menswear company listed on the Main Board, and is responsible for
providing strategic advice on the business development, operations
and management of the listed group.

Mr. ZHOU Kai (F&l % %), aged 48, is our independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 16 December 2019. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Zhou has more than 10 years of experience in the area of

financial development and regulations. The following table sets forth
the working experience of Mr. Zhou:

Principal business

BYFEHITEE @

BAEAEB2018FIARETHEFHBERD
AIRHEEIERERAR (EER LM &
BRI IBITDHIEHTEET  AEA LT
EEMERLER  LERETERMERE N
==

BE\LE - 485% BBV IERNITES -
R2019F 12 A16BEZEABBILIEHNTE
LFE-HFAEAEEERHEBILER -

BEERERERNEZRGCBEHEFBI0F
B - TREIFEENTIEEE:

Period Name of entity activities Position held Responsibilities
M BERAW ITRERED FENBQ BE
January 2020 DeHeng Law Offices Law firm Lawyer Providing legal advices to
- Present (Ningbo) (t Riz1E clients in the area of
(BR)BRMEBH) corporate governance
and financial activities
20201 AERE  EREEER) EM w7 2R REFRHEGRERR
ES 3 SREBEBER
BR
May 2018 Ningbo Zhenhai Rural Bank Independent non-executive Responsible for governance
- Present Commercial Bank director of the bank
Limited (2 )% T #28
RNBERTRN
BR AR
018F5AERE  ERMEBRNEX AT BUFHTES BERTNER
FIRBERRA
April 2018 Zhejiang Jinzong Law Firm  Law firm Lawyer Providing legal advices to
- December 2019 I e REMmEL clients in the area of
corporate governance
and financial activities
2018F4AE2019F HMISREMEBM #amT Ed REPRBELEERR
124 SREDEBNER
BR
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Principal business

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENESREEE @)

BYEHITEE @

Period Name of entity activities Position held Responsibilities

M ERAW TEXERED EEOBQ BE

November 2012 The Financial Affairs Government authority ~ Deputy director Formulating and organising
= July 2017 Office of Ningbo the implementation of

Municipal Government the development plans
(BEETARBF & of the local capital
THERIE) market; supervising the
financial activities in the
district
02F1MAE BERTARKRM & IR Y #% B8 alxE HERBEETEHWER
201747R THERRE MENERASINEE
EE e RED
December 2008 The Financial Affairs Government authority  Director Formulating and organising

- November 2012 Office of Yinzhou,
District Government,

Ningbo (28 )% i 2B/ [&

ARBRFE&BM It
BAE)
2008FE12AE BETMHEMEARRE BFESE IfF
20124114 SRIERLE

Mr. Zhou graduated from Nanjing University (5 R AZ) with a
degree of bachelor of political science in the school of political
science and public administration in July 1994. He also obtained a
master degree of public administration from The Australian National
University in July 2004. Mr. Zhou was admitted as a lawyer in the
PRC in June 2000.

the implementation of
the development plans
of the local financial
market; supervising the
financial activities in the
district
HERBHEETEM SR
MEMERRIREE
EE e RED

R1994F7H - AEEEXNERAAEWE
BMBCAEITRERERBAEE LB -
TR FA2004F 7 A 7 BUER M Bl 7 RE R R %
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERERE

EEE @

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREERE

Mr. LAU Chung Wai (BIfh& %), aged 38, is our chief financial Blfh& %4+ 385 AEFUHBEEA
officer and company secretary. Mr. Lau is responsible for overseeing /& - Bl A B EEBEAEEKE - /\%ﬁ

the investment, compliance and financial affairs of our Group.

KB BEL -

Mr. Lau has over 15 years of experience in accounting and finance. 2l 4ARNEHRMBHEER BI15FKLR -

The following table sets forth the working experience of Mr. Lau:

Period

s

Name of entity

ERsH

TRHEINBEENTIEEE

Principal business
activities Position held

TEXEBRED EERNBA

August 2015
- March 2019

2015F8A &
2019434

May 2013
- July 2015

2013F5/7 &
2015474

September 2011
= April 2013

20ME9AE
2013%F4 A

September 2004
- September 2011

2004F9R &=
2011498

Da Sen Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 1580)

RHEEBREEERDA
(B 17 5% - 1580)

Passion Art International Holdings
Limited

Passion Art International Holdings
Limited

Starcom Worldwide, a subsidiary of

Publicis Groupe SA, a company listed

on the Euronext Paris
(stock code: PUB. PA)

Starcom Worldwide * 5 ‘2 & £ Publicis
Groupe SAKIMTB D E - RERZE

EERGLET
(Bt R 5% : PUB.PA)

Ernst & Young

ZoKE B EBA
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Manufacture and sale of  Chief financial officer and
plywood products and company secretary
biomass wood pellets

RERHEBERERK BRVBERAAWE
A EYEREN

Manufacture and sale of  Group financial controller
furniture and home
decoration products

RENHERER SEMBRE
REKHim

Media agency Finance manager

RENE sEE

Assurance Manager of assurance
department
(last position)

it R H Bt RIS AP
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor of business administration in accounting
in November 2004. He was admitted as a certified public accountant
of HKICPA in January 2008 and has become a fellow member of
HKICPA since May 2015.

Mr. LI Wenqing (ZXE), aged 48, has been our financial
controller since March 2020. Mr. Li is responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting affairs, compliance and also the treasury function
of the Group’s PRC operations.

Mr. Li has over 26 years of experience in accounting and finance
functions. The following table sets forth the working experience of
Mr. Li:

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EE&W &kﬁ_fﬁjg(nﬁ

SREEE =

BI&E £ P004FNAZEREERIEK
2 OEDMI/MEE@MMEBLEMN - FER
2008 F 1 HENMABSSHMASHESS
FE B - 201545 AR ABF B A

e B Ee 8
& &
==\ EEO

EVERE 4857 © B2020F 3 A IE(EES
HRE c TR LB EEEYFERER
AHREAEEPRREEENY R -

FRERGF LM HBEE N HHE N265F
BE - TREINFRENTHERRE

Period Name of entity Position held
HA R ERER EERBAA
October 2015 — February 2020 IS EERKNDBR AR Financial controller

2015104 =202042 A
September 2008 — September 2015 ALt EEBRAR]
2008 9H £20154F9H

March 2004 — August 2008
2004938 £2008F 8 A PN - S
January 2000 — February 2004 FERIRSFANELA

200051 A £20044%2 A

July 1994 — December 1999
1994473 £19994 12 A

Mr. Li graduated from Hubei University in 1994 with a tertiary level
of Chinese Language and Literature, and Mr. Li further graduated
from Renmin University of China in 2016 with a bachelor of business
in accounting. Mr. Li is currently a certified public accountant in PRC.

Pan-China Certified Public Accountants

M E(EBECIRNARQT

MG E

Financial controller

MG E

Audit manager

#watge

Project manager
THE &K

Accountant

® 5t

THERIMAFEENBRILRE  ERE
BEXNEERUR  FRLEE—PH2016

FEENFEARKRE  EFa7FE2L2
- FRERRATEAXSETE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 12 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 9 to 24 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this report of the directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the Group's
audited financial statements on pages 67 to 183.

A special dividend of HK$0.06 per Share was paid on 23 December

2020. The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

100,000,000 Shares at HK$1.28 each were issued upon Listing and
5,042,000 Shares also at HK$1.28 each were issued pursuant to
the partial exercise of the Over-Allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) on 5 February 2020. The net proceeds raised by the
Company from the Listing (including the proceeds from the partial
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option amounted to HK$6,453,760
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.8 million) and after deducting
the listing expenses) amounted to approximately RMB84.1 million.
Such net proceeds are intended to be applied in the same manner
and the same proportion as disclosed in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The table below sets
out the proposed application and the status of utilisation as at 31

December 2020:

Net proceeds
utilised during

BEEFRE®@®

AATERDAYEHERE
i

R Z S R1.287 7T 77100,000,0008%
f%1n » B H20209F2 A5H R 15 17 1# 28 #8
HRRE(CERBRER)ZER1.28%
JLE175,042,00008 % 5 - AR EH T E
SREFHE(PETESDBELEREMS
X 186,453,760 T (HBERH A RS8R
BTNk EMAZ®) A ARKS4
BB - ARRBIZEBKRERIRKFE &
FISRERE ] —amE AR A X AR
b EFE R il TS RRIEEER o TR ED R
A% N FR2020F12 A31H 8 (E B AL 7 ¢

Net proceeds
unutilised as at 31

Expected timeline for
full utilisation of the

Planned the current year December 2020 unutilised proceeds
R2020512A318
FECHARE ABEAFMBRE 2HBAXEARS
&l RIEEH B REARREX
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREFTT ARETTT
Increasing production lines for candles 39,963 (33,710) 6,253 By the end of 2022
and expanding production capability
in home fragrance
ENEENEERURBARERE 2022 FE Al
i) 2 B
Establishing two regional sales offices in 18,846 — 18,846 By the end of 2022
Europe
RENR MRS HERER 20225 F R Al
Strengthening research and development 10,348 (454) 9,894 By the end of
capabilities 1st half of 2022
InaE B P9 #0 B 2 A 20225 E¥ FHERA
Upgrading information system and 7,067 (1,723) 5,344 By the end of 2022
logistics capacities
& &R G R e h R 20225 FEA
General working capital purpose 7,908 (7,908) — N/A
E—REEEEAE A
84,132 (43,795) 40,337
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESRE@

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on page 184 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 26 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries of the Company
purchased, redeemed or sold the listed securities of the Company
during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
(2020 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB249,653,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB1,000,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 56% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 13%.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Chairman and executive Director

Mr. JIN Jianxin

Executive Directors

Mr. RU Liming
Mr. TIAN Dong

Non-executive Director

Mr. SHAO Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAl Chun Yu
Mr. YANG Herong
Mr. ZHOU Kai

Mr. LAl Chun Yu, Mr. YANG Herong and Mr. ZHOU Kai will retire
in accordance with articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles and
they being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive Directors regarding each of the
factors referred to in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Company still considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 25 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. LAl Chun Yu, Mr. YANG Herong and Mr. ZHOU Kai,
all of them being independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to renew his
appointment for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2021, renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the day following the expiry of the then current
term of appointment, unless terminated by either the Company or
each of Mr. LAl Chun Yu, Mr. YANG Herong and Mr. ZHOU Kai by
giving at least three months’ notice in writing at the end of the
aforementioned three-year term and any time thereafter.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remunerations are determined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. JIN Jianxin and

Mr. RU Liming, executive Directors, have waived their emoluments
granted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a permitted indemnity
provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was in
force for an indemnity against certain liabilities incurred by Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. JIN Jianxin, being an executive Director and a beneficial
shareholder of AE M SRALERERAR, BREHIREERE
RAF and BRIZELELEREBGRAE], was interested in contracts
for the lease of certain properties to the Group as office and
production facilities, and warehouse and showroom. Further details
of the transactions undertaken in connection therewith are included
in note 34 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above. no Director nor a connected entity of a
Director had interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares
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Number of Shares held

FEROHE

Directly Through Percentage of

beneficially controlled the Company’s

Name of Directors Notes owned corporation Total share capital

EERLYAREZ

EEpnE B EEERES BBZEEE Bt Bot

JIN Jianxin @) 5,386,000 217,294,000 222,680,000 54.98%
TR

RU Liming (b) = 54,102,857 54,102,857 13.36%
Zh 32 B

5,386,000 325,396,857 276,782,857 68.33%
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Notes:

(@ King Harmony Limited is wholly owned by Mr. JIN Jianxin, and Mr. JIN Jianxin
is deemed to be interested in the 217,294,000 Shares owned by King Harmony
Limited under the SFO.

(b) DMA Limited is owned as to 80.70% by Mr. RU Liming and Mr. RU Liming
is deemed to be interested in the 54,102,857 Shares owned by DMA Limited
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive had registered an interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group had 534 employees in the PRC, Australia and Hong Kong
as at 31 December 2020. The total salaries and related costs granted
to employees amounted to approximately RMB51.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group’s remuneration policy, bonus and share option scheme
determines benefits of employees (including Directors) based on the
duties and performance of each individuals. The Group has also
participated in the mandatory provident fund retirement benefit
scheme in Hong Kong, and the central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government in the PRC. The Group arranges
trainings necessary to employees for performing their duties.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any
member of the Group, including any executive Director, non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Director, adviser
and consultant of the Group or any subsidiaries of the Company.
The Scheme is effective for a period of ten years commencing on
16 January 2020, after which period no further options may be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects and options granted during the life
of the Scheme may continue to be exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue.
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The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 40,000,000 Shares. The maximum number
of Shares issuable under the Scheme to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option
may be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval of the
Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general
meeting or by our Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as our Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be
less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five Shares trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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The Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not
carry voting rights until completion of the registration of the grantee
(or any other person) as the holder thereof. Subject to the aforesaid,
Shares allotted and issued on the exercise of options will rank pari
passu in all respects and shall have the same voting, dividend,
transfer and other rights, including those arising on liquidation as
attached to the other fully paid Shares in issue on the date of issue.

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any of the Directors or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. JIN Jianxin, being an executive Director and a beneficial
shareholder of BE M SHAXLERBR AT, BRBEHIREERE
RAFE] and EREIILLERABR AT, was interested in contracts
for the lease of certain properties to the Group as office and
production facilities, and warehouse and showroom. Further details
of the transactions undertaken in connection therewith are included
in note 34 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares

EEEHRE@

FERREREMATRROR
HEROHERR XS

R2020F12 318 » U MEARQE A K BE
B HES%E LA £ 2 S KR B e 8RR 7B 2

MBI GBI E3B6EETEARARAAEAFTE Y
B ERMA:

ROBER

Number of Shares held

FERGHEE
Directly Through Percentage of the
beneficially Through controlled Company's share
Name Notes owned spouse corporation Total capital
HERNRRAZ
i M ERERES BBAELE BAZEEE @t BAk
CHEN Jiangyan (@) - 218,752,000 - 218,752,000 54.01%
REE
King Harmony Limited 216,540,000 - - 216,540,000 53.46%
ENBRRA
DMA Limited 54,102,857 - - 54,102,857 13.36%
ERAERAT
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong)
Financial Holdings Limited (b) - - 20,530,000 20,530,000 5.07%
HEEFER eRERERAR
Notes: Hif i -
(a) Ms. CHEN Jiangyan is the spouse of Mr. JIN Jianxin and therefore is deemed  (a) REZLTRSEMNEAENORRE - BILBREE
to be interested in all the Shares Mr. JIN Jianxin is interested in under the SFO. HFREEED  REZZLTHEARESEN T
EHEBERENMEROPEEES -
(b) 15,000,000 Shares are held by China Industrial Securities International (b 15,000,000 fi% 17 1 52 75 Bl BR Bt & B PR 2 7 +F

Capital Limited and 5,530,000 Shares are held by China Industrial Securities
International Brokerage Limited, both of which are wholly owned by China
Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited. China Industrial
Securities International Financial Group Limited is owned as to 51.93% by
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited and therefore
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is deemed to be
interested in the 20,530,000 Shares under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in Shares and underlying shares and
debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total
number of issued Shares were held by the public as at 31 December
2020.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouesCoopers retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

JIN Jianxin
Chairman

Hong Kong 31 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2020 and
as at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. JIN Jianxin (Chairman)

Mr. RU Liming
Mr. TIAN Dong

Non-executive Director

Mr. SHAO Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAI Chun Yu
Mr. YANG Herong
Mr. ZHOU Kai
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Board meetings, board committee meetings and
general meetings

The attendance of each Director for the Board meetings, board
committee meetings and general meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the following table:

EXxgel EEZREEER

ERRRE

SEELFERNEH E2020F128318 LEE

BUIZEFEERE EFZ
RARZFHBEINMT :

Meeting attended/meetings eligible to attend
ERLRERY FEREEERRY

BEgamhix

Audit Remuneration Nomination  Shareholders’

Directors = Board committee committee committee meetings

- ERZEE FMEES REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. JIN Jianxin SRFEE 5/5 N/A T 17 7 22
Mr. RU Liming mBHEE 5/5 N/A 73 N/A 73 N/A 7 22
Mr. TIAN Dong HELE 5/5 N/A 73 N/A 73 N/A 7 22
Non-executive Director FETES
Mr. SHAQ Patrick BFEAE 5/5 33 N/A T A N/A T A 22
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive Directors

Mr. LAl Chun Yu REF R4 5/5 33 7 1/1 22
Mr. YANG Herong BREEE 3/5 N/A T8 N/A T8 n 072
Mr. ZHOU Kai EE P 5/5 33 7 N/A T A 22
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The board diversity policy sets out the objective and approach to
achieve and maintain diversity of the Board of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the Board
and maintaining the high standard of corporate governance, the
Company recognises increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in
a number of aspects, including but not limited to professional
experience, gender, age, cultural and education background,
knowledge, ethnicity and length of service and any other factors
that the Board might consider relevant and applicable from time to
time in order to achieve board diversity. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board
and, when possible, should be balanced appropriately. All Board
appointments will be based on merit and the contribution which
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of the diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to professional experience
and qualifications, gender, age, cultural and education background,
knowledge, ethnicity, skills, industry experience and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The nomination
committee of the Company will discuss and agree annually all
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

T EERBE @)

EEERESTILEE

EFERBEETEBRRINEARRIESTS
REENHFKREZTEMERROERER
778t e

RENTEFSNREM AR EEELRNK
BIRE ARARREFTSEEEMNZ T
REFBFEZINEETLR - —HAELS
TENEZEHERERERZEATEHNT
Rz BREFMRNERLR 1HE5H -
Fie -XERBEES M#E - Bk R
BEH URSEREFEXESZ T
ExgrUe THEZEMEELERNEIM
HMAER ZETAKREETEZTENR
BEAEKE TLAZE X RAEER TR
FREEYEH ZEFSNMAEZETHUARA
EARRR - URABERETEH RN
BR YRNERAERRGATE R DR
REEFEXRBZTILz#a -

BEAERZ-RIZTBRELSEE
BREITRREXZLERNER K-
Fi - XERBEES M# Bk K
B TEERMREFH - ZEHERA
ENRELASEFSRANERMER
E-ARBREZZECEFINERESTS
MRBZTEAmEBEAGFERR A
MEFSHEBEZSEFRAMRER -

W IZERERAR —T-—TEE®R 4/



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

T EERBE @)

Chairman and chief executive

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive should be segregated
and should not be performed by the same individual. However, we
do not have a separate chairman and chief executive and Mr. JIN
Jianxin currently performs these two roles. Throughout our business
history, Mr. Jin, being a founder of our Group and a controlling
Shareholder, has held the key leadership position of our Group and
has been deeply involved in the formulation of corporate strategies
and management of the business and operations of our Group
since its establishment. Taking into account the consistent leadership
within our Group, our Board believes that it is in the best interests
of our Group and our Shareholders as a whole to have Mr. Jin taking
up both roles for effective and efficient overall strategic planning
and continuation of the implementation of such plans for our Group.
Our Board considers that the balance of power and authority under
the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable our Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. Save as disclosed in this section, our Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group,
and delegates day-to-day operations to the management team
of the Group. The Board provides directions to the management
team by laying down strategies and plans, and then oversees the
implementation performed by the management team. The Board also
timely monitor the Group’s operational and financial performance
through monthly reports prepared by the management of the Group.

The Board also review the compensation policies, succession
planning, internal control system and risk management system
regularly through various committees established under the Board.

Code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.
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Terms of appointment of non-executive
Directors

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of three years, renewable automatically for successive terms of
one year each commencing from the day following the expiry of
the then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
the Company or each of the non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors by giving at least three months’ notice in writing
at the end of the aforementioned three-year term and any time
thereafter.

The table set forth below summarises the annual remuneration for
each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors:

T EERBE @)

HRHUTESZEEFH

BEIRUITRBUIFATERTC BARAR]
YERER RE=F BERCATHE
mZBRBEBETESRER R —F
BRIERRREAEFFATRBLIFERTES
WA bt = FAEEIAE SRR B 2 18 1O {7 B
M THELEIEANEEBARL -

TRASFATRBLIFERTESTNE
E# B

Annual

remuneration

Director Ex FE 5
Mr. SHAO Patrick BB % 4 RMB80,000
A R 80,0007

Mr. LAl Chun Yu RIRFHLE HKD180,000
180,000/ 7T

Mr. YANG Herong 15 M & 5 RMB80,000
A R 80,0007

Mr. ZHOU Kai Bk A& RMB80,000
A R 80,0007

Nomination Policy

The nomination committee of the Company makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
and succession planning for Directors.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the nomination committee of the Company
shall consider a variety of factors including without limitation the
following in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@)  reputation for integrity;

(b)  accomplishment, experience and reputation in the relevant
industry and other relevant sectors;
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(0 commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and

attention to the Company’s business;

(d)  diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e)  the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;,

(f)  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of
an independent non-executive Director; and

(g) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the

nomination committee of the Company or the Board from time
to time.

Board committees

The Company currently has three committees established under the
Board, which are listed as follows:

° Audit committee
° Remuneration committee
° Nomination committee

Audit committee

The role and function of the audit committee of the Company is
summarised below:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditor

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor;

o to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

o to consider any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;
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o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

o to report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor.

Review of the Company’s financial information

o to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report, interim report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them; and

o to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review, if applicable, and final audits, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary).

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

o to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

o to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems;

o to consider major findings from investigations on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to
these findings;
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where an internal audit function exists,

(@) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors;

(b)  to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company; and

() to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the external auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

to report to the Board on the matters in the code provision
under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules;

to consider any other matters specifically referred to the audit
committee by the Board including but not limited to the
following:

(@  to review the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Company, including the internal controls
on bank account management and the monitoring of
bank transactions on a quarterly basis in order to detect
and prevent improper bank activities and transactions;

(b)  to review the report on bank account activities, material
bank transactions and all incoming wire transfers on a

quarterly basis to detect irregularities;

(c)  to report irregularities (if any) to the Board immediately;
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(d) to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the fair
and independent investigation of such matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

(e)  to review the findings of the Company’s internal audit
division from time to time.

The audit committee is currently chaired by Mr. LAl Chun Yu, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other members of the
audit committee are Mr. SHAO Patrick, a non-executive Director, and
Mr. ZHOU Kai, an independent non-executive Director.

Remuneration committee

The role and function of the remuneration committee of the
Company is summarised below:

o to establish and review the Company’s policy and structure of
the remuneration for Directors and senior management and
make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

o to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, or to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management;

o to make recommendations to the Board on employee benefit
arrangement;
o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive Directors;

o to consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration;
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o to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company;

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

o to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive Director who is
a member of the Committee, his/her remuneration should be
determined by the other members of the Committee; and

o to advise shareholders of the Company with respect to
any service contracts of Directors that require shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules.

The remuneration committee is currently chaired by Mr. ZHOU Kai,
an independent non-executive Director and the other members
of the remuneration committee are Mr. JIN Jianxin, an executive
Director and Mr. LAI Chun Yu, an independent non-executive
Director.
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Nomination committee REZES

The role and function of the nomination committee of the Company ARGIREZZESHNAE KB NT
is summarised below:

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and length of services) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
corporate strategy of the Company;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals for nomination of directorships
of the Company;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to advise the Board on the following issues on the selection
of an individual to be nominated as an independent non-
executive Director:

(@)  the process used for identifying the individual and why
the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

if the proposed independent non-executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

(c)  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(d)

how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment or removal of
directors of the Company and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company;
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o to implement and review the Board diversity policy of the
Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”); recommend any
revisions of the Board Diversity Policy to the Board; review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives;

o disclose the Board Diversity Policy or a summary of such
policy, in particular, the measurable objectives that it has set
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the progress
on achieving these objectives and its review results in the
Company’s corporate governance report annually; and

o to review and disclose the policy for nomination of directors
implemented, as appropriate, and a summary of the work
during the year in the Company’s corporate governance report
annually.

The nomination committee is currently chaired by Mr. YANG Herong,
an independent non-executive Director, and the other members of
the nomination committee are Mr. JIN Jianxin, an executive Director
and Mr. LAl Chun Yu, an independent non-executive Director.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company in respect of the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020. In addition, PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged as the
Company’s reporting accountant in relation to the initial public
offering of the Shares. No non-audit services have been provided
by PricewaterhouseCoopers to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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An analysis of the fees paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
in relation to services rendered to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is as follows:

T EERBE @)

MELF KBS ESNE E20206F
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SERESNZ2BASTOT

RMB'000

ARBF T

Audit services % 8Bk 7% 1,280
Non-audit services IEZ B RS -
1,280

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may consider declaring and paying dividends to the
Shareholders by taking into account the factors set out below. Such
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall remain
to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to
the requirements under all applicable laws, rules and regulations as
well as the Articles.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into consideration, inter
alia, the following factors:

(@)  results of operation;

(b)  cash flows;

(¢)  financial condition;

(d)  future business prospects;

(e)  statutory and contractual restrictions on the payment of
dividends; and

(f)  any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with
respect to the Company’s Shares on a per share basis.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as interim
dividend, final dividend, special dividend and any distribution of
net profits that appear to the Board to be justified by the profits
of the Company available for distribution. Except in the case of
interim dividend, any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of shareholders at an annual
general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip
or by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to
and in accordance with the procedures set out in the Articles.

The Company will continually review the dividend policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time. The policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount and in no way obligate the Company
to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders can at any time raise enquiries to the Board. The
enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
Shareholder(s) and deposited at the principal place of business of
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 629A, 6th Floor, Star House, No. 3
Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention
of the company secretary of the Company.

In addition, any one or more duly registered holder of the Shares
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Except for the adoption of the Memorandum and the Articles, there
is no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board confirms that it has conducted a review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group currently has no internal
audit function and such review was performed by an independent
third party engaged by the Group. The Board considers that it is
more cost effective to engage an independent third party instead of
recruiting a team of an internal audit staff to perform such annual
review function. The Board will consider to set up an internal audit
function in the foreseeable future when the business size of the
Group grows larger.

The Board concludes, based on the result of the review, that the
risk management and internal control systems currently in place are
adequate and effective. The Board expects that a review of the
risk management and internal control systems will be performed
annually.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B R S

e
pwc

To the Shareholders of Kwung’s Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Kwung’s Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages

67 to 183, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
ALK Ot ERFHBSPT » A BOK 7K BE T 0 #01% : +852 2289 8888 * L : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 B ET RS |

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

A key audit matter related to revenue recognition on wholesale of

goods is identified in our audit as follows:

B8 88 & 5 E = (@m0

BRMERmBARAOBERETFER
ERZTREANWT

Revenue recognition — wholesale of goods

WA REE - #RE G

Refer to Note 2.20 and Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2HEA B RRM E2.20% M6 -

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is RMB472 million. The Group's
major revenue transactions are from wholesale of
goods. Revenue is recognised when control of the
underlying products has been transferred to the
customers.

BEEEHZ220F A3 LFEZRARAR
a2 8T EEENTFZWRARSRA#E
BEmeo WAREHAERIEHEEEBEEPRE

2

We focus on revenue from wholesale of goods due
to the high volume of sales, and thus significant
audit time and resources were devoted in this area.
BMBEIREHEER IR ACTERIEES R
K -EAMREEEBAREEFHHRER
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We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis,
management’s key controls over revenue recognition in
respect of the Group’'s sales transactions, from approval
of customer orders, all the way to settlement of trade
receivables.

st BEEENEEXFEBMEFEER AT
REBEEAMETPIEZASTESIRIKREL KA
R RIES -

We conducted testing for revenue transactions on a sample
basis by examining the relevant supporting documents,
including: sales contracts or customer orders, sales invoices,
shipping documents, Customs declaration forms for export
sales, and cash collections.

BFEmMEEE BEREEEEIXN  BE HE
BHNEFAE  HERE MEXH LHOHEHEEH
BBRMERES  HRAXSETAH -

We performed confirmation procedures on selected
customers’ receivable balances at the balance sheet date
and on selected customers’ revenue transaction amounts
during the year.
EMENEEABERABZETEPRERFESRBELTF
NEERFPHRARSGEETHERER

We tested sales transactions that took place before
and after the balance sheet date to assess whether the
transactions were recognised in the appropriate reporting
period based on the supporting documents obtained.

BB EERBERAHARETHHERSETAR - KU
BREMGEEXHTIERGEENBEE RS HEER -

Based on our work performed, we found the revenue
transactions tested were supported by the relevant evidence
that we gathered.
ERABMTOIF - BHMER - ROKENEBEEEX
BEASNDKRARS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in definition, corporate information, directors and senior
management, report of the directors and corporate governance
report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, and the chairman’s statement and
management discussion and analysis, which are expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read the chairman’s statement and management discussion
and analysis, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 B ET RS |

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR TR )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meZEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2019
20194
Notes RMB’000
B & AR¥ET T
Revenue I'N 6 472,179 501,131
Cost of sales FioR= 9N 6, 7 (364,030) (367,452)
Gross profit EF 108,149 133,679
Administrative expenses TR X 7 (50,787) (70,311)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHFAX 7 (17,704) (8,574)
Net impairment losses on financial PREEREEBEEFE
assets 21, 22 (830) (662)
Other income Hfth U 2= 9 8,600 1,919
Other gain/(losses) — net Hip W as /(& 18)
- 10 135 (23,088)
Operating profit KEHRF 47,563 32,963
Finance income 5% W & 902 119
Finance costs B 75 B AR (403) (514)
Finance income/(costs) — net Bsles(BRAR) - 558 11 499 (395)
Profit before income tax B Fir 18 B A& A 48,062 32,568
Income tax expense Frisfim X 13 (7,306) (4,758)
Profit for the year FRREF 40,756 27,810
Profit attributable to: LA f& 15 & 1 -
— Owners of the Company - XREHEBA 40,846 27,820
— Non-controlling interests - JEERER (90) (10)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income H b2 (E518), W
Items that may be reclassified BEERIE P E e
subsequently to profit or loss EHH
Exchange differences on translation of & /GINETE 2 B} =458
foreign operations (63) 9
Total comprehensive income FREZEKBZAH
for the year 40,693 27,819

W ZRAERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mETHWRFER@®E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2019
20194
Notes RMB’000
iok=3 AREFTT
Total comprehensive income LTHBAEGEZZ®A
attributable to: W 5 4B RE
- Owners of the Company - XREHEBA 40,795 27,827
- Non-controlling interests - JEERES (102) (8)
Earnings per share for EKATBEBAEEZET
profit attributable to owners ZEBREBMN(ZER
of the Company ARMRT)
(expressed in RMB per share)
- Basic and diluted - EAREE 14 10.2 cents % 9.3 cents®

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LEX&ZEZHEKEREERBENOIGEE VB
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the — ¥R Z& Mt it — GBI :E -
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

)

B %5 R &

As at 31 December 2020 72020%12 A31H

As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019
20194
Notes RMB’000
B & AR¥ET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 5 45,467 48,278
Investment properties wWEME 6 4,995 -
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 8 13,028 16,720
Intangible assets mEEE 7 4,763 3,504
Deferred income tax assets BLEMSHEE 30 510 3,043
Total non-current assets FEREBEERE 68,763 71,545
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 55,031 42,671
Trade receivables 2 5 rElFE 21 81,105 64,920
Prepayments, deposits and other FENHIE  Ze Rk
receivables H b & W R IE 22 15,753 27,566
Financial assets at fair value through #ZRAFEFABZZ
profit or loss PEAEE 23 44,726 -
Other current assets HibmEh & E 24 20,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeSED 25 110,735 67,843
Total current assets MEEERE 327,350 203,000
Total assets EEH#E 396,113 274,545
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of ZAAOFEHAELER
the Company
Share capital [N 26 359 -
Share premium f& 10 4% (B 26 249,653 163,681
Other reserves H b {3 & 27 (29,847) (34,556)
Retained earnings REEF 105,043 68,957
325,208 198,082
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR R = 536 638
Total equity R 325,744 198,720

W ZRAERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

rE B ES AR R R (@|)

As at 31 December 2020 72020412 H31H

As at 31 December

R12A318
2019
20194
Notes RMB'000
o=3 ARETTT
Liabilities =
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables BEZRNIREAER
H B < 5k 1B 28 58,339 46,815
Contract liabilities BEHEE 6 3,819 4,054
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT SR Al 2,276 950
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABZZER/
through profit or loss =R 23 - 14,472
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 3,759 3,863
Total current liabilities mEAERARE 68,193 70,154
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 2,176 5,671
Total liabilities EE8E 70,369 75,825
Total equity and liabilities EzRkaEER 396,113 274,545

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 67 to 183 were approved by the
board of directors of the Company on 31 March 2021 and were

signed on its behalf by:

JIN Jianxin
SEH
Executive director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

Note

Balance at 1 January 2020 R0WF1B1BNER - 163681 (34556 68,957 198,082 638 198,720
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF /(B8 = = - 40846 40,846 (90) 40,756
Exchange differences on translation B BH EHER £E

of foreign operations 27 = = (51) = (51) (12) (63)

= = (51) 40,846 40,795 (102) 40,693

Transactions with owners in their EHFEFANEFEBERA

capacity as owners MERETHR S
Appropriation to statutory reserves &R EER 27) = = 4760  (4,760) = = =
Capitalisation of shares R A& 266 (266) - - - - -
Issuance of shares by share offer, net A% E% 7R

of expenses related to issuance of  (MIBEHTHEAEE

shares B3 93 106,863 - - 106,956 - 106,956
Dividends paid EfRE 31 - (20,625) = - (20,625) - (20,625)
Balance at 31 December 2020 W2020512B31B & 8 350 249,653  (29,847) 105,043 325,208 536 325,744

W ZRAERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mMEEREEHR®

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEBAER

Non-

Share Share Other  Retained controlling

capital  premium  reserves  earnings  Subtotal interests

kx ROEE HbEE RIRM Nt ERES

Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Total
equity
RRBH
RMB'000

HiE ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2019 B019F1B1ENE & - 163,681 (39,513) 46,087 170,255 646 170,901
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/(BR) - - - 2180 27820 (10) 27810
Exchange differences on translation R EFNEHELEE

of foreign operations 27 - - 7 - 7 2 9

- - 7 27820 21827 ) 271819

Transactions with owners in their EHEBANEEEERA

capacity as owners MERETHR S
Appropriation to statutory reserves & (& & 3 276) - - 4,950 4,950) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019512A31B £ 8 - 163681 (34,556) 68957 198,082 638 198720
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019
20194F
Notes RMB'000
Mt &t ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities L& FEBHEHEESRE
Cash generated from operations KERSRE 32(a) 38,437 33,814
Interest received U A B 902 119
Income tax paid RENIFIECE (3,446) (12,465)
Net cash generated from RETBHEBEETFH
operating activities 35,893 21,468
Cash flows from investing activities R E ZE IS ELHRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BERZB
equipment (11,107) (19,818)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & i &R & AT13 A - 28,970
Deemed distribution "8 AEDIK - (163,681)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE (1,098) (2,198)
Payments for purchase of wealth BEmERITETZ
management products issued by B EGRZNK
commercial banks (227,693) -
Payments for fixed income wealth BHEMZBETRAZ
management products NS (40,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of wealth HERERTEITZ
management products issued by B ERZAERIE
commercial banks 188,180 -
Proceeds from fixed income wealth BHEMZBETRAZ
management products BT 18 5018 20,386 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BER
plant and equipment FAEPTE A 32(b) 90 18
Net cash used in investing activities R EEFBFFABE ST E (71,242) (156,709)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)

HERERER@E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2019
20194
Notes RMB’000
B & ARKET T
Cash flows from financing activities B E EFEFfMBHEHRE
Proceeds from borrowings BEBRIA = 20,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE = (20,000)
Loans from a related party —Z@H T ER 34(b) - 6,861
Repayments of loans from a related B — 2B H 2 EX
party 34(b) (269) (6,592)
Interest paid B FE (403) (515)
Capital contribution from the owners of KX & #H A A HE
the Company = 114,632
Payments for listing expenses S EmHE (10,834) (2,675)
Principal elements of lease payments & A& &5 (4,302) (1,870)
Proceeds from share issuance upon TR AT FT1S R
listing 119,157 -
Dividends paid RENE S 37 (20,625) -
Net cash generated from financing BEZBHFBSELFHE
activities 82,724 109,841
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&RESEEYHE M~
cash equivalents R ) Z 8 47,375 (25,400)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REIE S LIRS EZEY
of the year 67,843 92,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #ME[E &R & &) 2 & (4,483) 632
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REXRB SRR EZEY
the year 110,735 67,843

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kwung's Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 13 November 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Cap.22, law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman,
KY1-9009, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in design and manufacturing of home fragrance
related products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
distributing the products to overseas and in the PRC. The
ultimate controlling company is King Harmony Limited. The
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group is Mr. Jin Jianxin
(“Mr. Jin” or the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

To prepare for the initial listing of the Company’s shares
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group has undertaken a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) pursuant to which the
Company became the holdings company of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2019.

The Company’s share began to list on the Stock Exchange on
16 January 2020.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying Group accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4 of this report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEFHREHME@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 R EE @)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies 210 B BEXZEE
(i) New standards, amendments and () FEFERANE
interpretations of HKFRSs adopted VBRI 3R &R
by the Group HIFTETE R ~ 15
AR
o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 . BB ER]
— Definition of material FIH RE B
@ 5 &I ES8
(g 5T ) -
ERANTEH
. Revised Conceptual Framework for . B TS 3RS B0 45
Financial Reporting BRI SEZR
o Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition . BBV RE
of a Business B35 (18
HEVEEES
M E &
o Amendments to HKRS 9, HKAS . BBV RE
39 and HKFRS 7 - Interest rate ZE Bl 5953
benchmark reform BB G E
BIIZE395E &
B IRE
BIZ78% (& 5]
) - FEE
i oy 5
o Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Leases for . BB Y B R
COVID-19-related rent concessions & A Bl 16
(s 5T ) -
COVID-1948 7
HENHEEE
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(i)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The adoption of the above new standard,
amendments and interpretation starting
from 1 January 2020 did not give rise to any
significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

New standard and amendments
of HKFRSs not yet adopted by the
Group

Certain new accounting standard,
amendments and interpretation have been
published but are not mandatory for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020
and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These new standard, amendments
and interpretation are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements when they become effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquired business;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEREBFBRREZ@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 2.2 M B AT )
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 &6t @)
(a) Business combinations (Continued) (a) HEHEEOFHE)
. equity interests issued by the Group; . REBFETZ
i 7
. fair value of any asset or liability . AR E R
resulting from a contingent EEXZEME
consideration arrangement; and EXEEIA
FE: &
. fair value of any pre-existing equity . R B AR F
interest in the subsidiary. Al 217 1 Ak 1
ZAFAAE °
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and Br > BB IB R
contingent liabilities assumed in a business Sh o REBEE B
combination are, with limited exceptions, B2 R & E N
measured initially at their fair values at the REEZBERK
acquisition date. The Group recognises any RBE  THIEK
non-controlling interest in the acquired BABMZAFER
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis 2 AEEIZRZEIE
either at fair value or at the non-controlling Uk B2 A E B R Uk
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired BEREEMIEER
entity’s net identifiable assets. & LR FEK
VA JE 1% iR 7 25 FE 1S
U B BE AT G R
AEFEMLO
% o
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as W B MR R AR E
incurred. R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from
an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transaction with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transaction — that
is, as transactions with the owner of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners,
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nvi\

Y 75 ¥R R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Investments in subsidiaries are also assessed for
impairment in accordance with Note 2.8 and
written down to their recoverable amounts.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM"), who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors

that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other gains/
(losses) — net” in the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs to their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

BEARESTHRBE@

25 ME - -BERKE@®E

PrE Ty E{H FT A A 4 8 (40
T ARBESEKERAD
EEMNBEETE:

Estimated useful lives

i 5 A1 62 A 5 3
Buildings 5-30 years
BF 5Z30%F
Transportation equipment 5 years
BRRE 54
Electronic equipment 3-5 years
BETr&E 3E5%F
Machinery 5-10 years
1 5Z104F
Furniture 5 years
RA 54
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term of lease
HEEE and their estimated useful lives

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “Other (losses)/gains — net” in the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EAEFHEHEHME@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Investment properties 26 WEWE
Investment properties are held for long-term rental KREMEREHH W EER
yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment E BEVEAKREEGEER - K
property is initially measured at cost, including related BEMENFENAGTE - B
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing MR 5 B R B TR AN (1n 3@
costs. Subsequently, they are also carried at cost less ) o Bfai KA 25T
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ERREBEIRK-
2.7 Intangible assets 27 BREEE
(@) Patent (@ EF
Patent is shown at historical cost. It has a finite HAERE LKA - B
useful life of 5 to 10 years and is subsequently Y FF E R A HA RS
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and E10F - AREKER R
impairment losses. FHE S RO BB -
When determining the length of useful life of a R T ZENE AR
patent, the Group takes into account the estimated B AEBFREHEEE
period during which such asset can bring economic B 7% 7N 5 [ 7 2R A8 07 )
benefits to the Group. B {4 EHER A o
(b) Software (b) B4
Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of A R 1) B AR FR U
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the MEEEME AL RAE
specific software. These costs are amortised over FEER AR REEER(L o
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years. ZEK AR R E B E AL

REHGEI0F)#H -

Considering the acquired software are well- =& B B R K
developed, off the shelf software with no Ao WEASLIEFROIRK
contractual terms, and the Group can use B AEE AR E
the software as long as it can meet the NAEENEBFTE B
Group’s business needs, based on the current BE4EENIRKIEE
functionalities equipped by the software and the AREERE KAEER
daily operation needs, the Group considers a useful BRSERI0FENFERAR
life of 5-10 years is the best estimation under RBBREREBZTZ0NRK
current business needs. EIEH -

Wi ZRERAT —T=—TFFH J9
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.

2
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29 SREE@

(ii)

(iii)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in profit or loss of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in profit or loss of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"):
Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
profit or loss of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instrument carried at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.1 details how
the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the relevant company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BEARESTHRBE@
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2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and
banks, deposits held at call with financial institutions
and other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

2.13
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subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. miRe BEEZHEARTAK
&) o
2.14 Share capital 2.14 B}

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EAREFHEBME@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables 215 B Z Kk Hfth B4 R IE
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods B 5 & B fth & 50 I8 5 B U
and services provided to the Group prior to the end of RATMAEEREE R &R
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables MAREXNEEE o T 501
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is mEmE A RI2E AR B A
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. B RHEMEMNKIEZS BR
They are recognised initially at their fair value and BaE - EH5RHAMENKIEA
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the NRATFEILTHER  BEXA
effective interest method. BERFNEERBHENARGTE -

2.16 Derivative financial instruments 216 fTE @M T A
The Group does not have any derivative financial REBYEEMNTEE TS
instruments that qualify for hedge accounting. MHITESRIA -
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised MESBMT AV ERNITES
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered WAz AFEER  H
into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. BERERNFTEENTE - £0
Changes in the fair value of any derivative financial MEeRIANRDFEZE (W
instruments are recognised immediately in the profit or TREHHAEFNITESRT
loss, except where the derivative financial instruments AN EIRNIEEPER -

are qualified for hedge accounting.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax 217 IR IEE T8 H
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the HAMEHAXKERERE
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based BRDERE N EAPENER
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction BVERfE R B A SZ T HY B IR
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities MBS ELEREZRER
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax AN B) R A I8 B 18 P B IR A
losses. BHEERBBEEHHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EARETHEBME@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax 217 BV HA % R %€ P 8 B (s
(Continued)
Current income tax BIER P8 B
The current income tax charge is calculated on the BNEFTS A X AR B R E R
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted AARHMBARKEEBKE
at the end of the reporting period in the countries/ EEERRMBAMEHRR,
regions where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and R EMME BB B MHA R
generate taxable income. Management periodically FEETE - BEERERWMBE
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to BILAR B 73 20 15 0 € HAGY 1
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to WMENMRR  LTEERBR
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate THREHAMMEEEBEHAN
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax R R o
authorities.
Deferred income tax EEFREH
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability REFENERABEEEREE
method, on temporary differences arising between the MBENNMERREREEY
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying FAHEREENGREUBRE
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. RAEBEE o A MIETER
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised HEBEREREHEMNYPER -
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. A E TSR - MELMRS
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it BMARBERRHH (EHBE GBRIN
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a HEEXABNYLHEA M
transaction other than a business combination that at the ERGHIZEGTRIEIE
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor ABER AT TEAR - E
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined EFFMEARBREMRAE
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or BB EREMG WEEH@
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period BELEMGEHEEBTRIGELER
and are expected to apply when the related deferred BEAERERESERBNT
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax E(RIER)METE -

liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable RERIBEEEERRERY
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise CHEBUARDAZEERE
those temporary differences and losses. BEREERTARR -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group only operates defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organized by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make
monthly contributions to these plans calculated
as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described
above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by
the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurance plans. The Group contributes on
a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions
to the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the relevant
Group entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of terminations benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.
2.20 Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
candles, home fragrance and home accessories
in the wholesale market. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria

for acceptance have been satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods — wholesale (Continued)

The products are sold with retrospective volume
rebates based on aggregate sales over a 12
months period to certain customers. Revenue
from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the rebates,
using the expected value method, and revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
The revenue from these sales are normally billable
immediate upon the delivery of the products.
No element of financing is deemed present as
the sales are made with no credit term, which
is consistent with market practice. The Group’s
obligation to replace faulty products under
the standard warranty terms is assessed and
recognised as a provision.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates some stores selling candles,
home fragrance and home accessories. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when a Group
entity sells a product to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods — retail (Continued)

Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases the
products and takes delivery in store. It is the
Group’s policy to sell its products to the end
customer with a right of return within 7 days.
Therefore, a refund liability (included in trade and
other payables) and a right to the returned goods
(included in other current assets) are recognised
for the products expected to be returned.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale at a portfolio level
(expected value method). Because the number
of products returned has been steady for years,
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
The validity of this assumption and the estimated
amount of returns are reassessed at each reporting
date.

Accounting for costs to fulfil a
contract

As the transportation activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they
are not separate performance obligation, therefore,
related costs are contract fulfil cost which are
capitalised as assets according to HKFRS 15. These
assets are amortised on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods to which the assets relate. Related assets
are not material at the balance sheet date due to
the short period of transportation and are charged
into the cost of sales directly as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Presentation of contract assets and

liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays consideration,
or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For a single
contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

Assets recognised from incremental
costs to obtain a contract

The Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining contracts such as
sales commissions as an expense when incurred
if the amortisation period of the assets that the
Group otherwise would have recognised is one
year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the weighted
average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases

(i)

The Group is the lessee

The Group leases properties and land use right in
the PRC as lessee. Rental contracts of properties
are typically made annually on a recurring basis but
may have extension options as described below.
The Group's interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments for land located
in the PRC and the lease term is 50 years, which
is included in right-of-use assets.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated or amortised
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o Fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o Variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group is the lessee (Continued)

o Payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group,
as a lessee, exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate
cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar terms
and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

. The amount of the initial measurement of
lease liabilities;

o Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

o Any initial direct costs; and

° Restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group is the lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Extension options are only included in the lease
term if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended. The Group determines the lease term
as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together
with both:

o Periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

o Periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option.

The Group is the lessor

When assets are leased out under operating
lease, the assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on the
nature of the assets. Rental income is recognised
in profit and loss of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government
grants which are obtained by the Group for the purposes
of purchase, construction or acquisition of the long-term
assets. Government grants related to income refer to the
government grants other than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are recorded as
deferred income and recognised in profit and loss of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a systemic basis over the useful lives of the assets.
Government grants to compensate the future costs,
expenses or losses are recorded as deferred income and
recognised in profit or loss when related costs incurred.
Government grants related to income that compensate
the incurred costs, expenses or losses are recognised
in profit or loss directly in current period. The Group
applies the presentation method consistently to the
similar government grants in the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

3.1.1 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, FVPL, derivative financial assets
and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
as well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail
customers, including outstanding receivables.

(i)

Cash in banks

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash
deposits at banks since they are substantially
deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large size listed banks.
Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to providing for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 * which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit loss also incorporate forward
looking information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other receivables

Other receivables at the end of each
reporting period were mainly deposits,
advances to employees and the amounts due
from related parities. The directors of the
Company consider the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit
risk the Group compares risk of a default
occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

. Internal credit rating;
. External credit rating;
o Actual or expected significant

adverse changes in business, financial
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
counterparty’s ability to meet its

obligations;

o Actual or expected significant changes
in the operating results of the
counterparty;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B 35 /& b B 2 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B#ERREZE@m
3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.1 1%%@@(%)
(iii) Other receivables (Continued) (i) H o EW 0 H
(#)

. Significant changes in the expected . HFEHEH
performance and behaviour of the ZBERTAN
counterparty; and BEREE B
BEZFNX
(E-guE 4N

M
. The employment relationship with the . HESEFA
employee debtor. W EBEER -
Regardless of the analysis above, a significant i E X oD
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor o] - M 1& 7 A %8 5
is more than 30 days past due in making a YREDTIE I
contractual payment/repayable demanded. TREEBEZRXIBER

B30R - Al E
ERBAEEM -

A default on a financial asset is when CHMEEMNENE
the counterparty fails to make contractual HEEAEFHE
payments/repayable demanded within 90 ERE BE90B
days of when they fail due. EHR A NN

EREENBER -

W ZRERAT —T=—TFFH /5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

3

116

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(iiij) Other receivables (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group. The Group categories
a loan or receivable for write off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded greater than 180 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in profit
or loss of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Since the advances to employees and
amounts due from related parties had no
historical default, at each reporting period
end, the expected losses of the advances to
employees and amounts due from related
parties are measured on a 12-month basis.

The directors of the Company believe that
there was no material credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding balance of other
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Forward-looking information
incorporated in the expected credit
loss model

The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.
The Group has identified key factors such as
the gross domestic product (“GDP"”) of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be
the most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3 BHEREREm

3.1 B REREZE®E
3.1 S ER K@

(iv) Forward-looking information (iv] FHIEEERE
incorporated in the expected credit A B BE Mt &
loss model (Continued) L E)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the 20205 220194
loss allowance provision were determined as 12A318 2 B 18 %

follows: HBREREBEETOT:

Trade receivables BEZEWRAE
31 December 2019
2019124318
RMB'000
ARBFT

Gross Loss
Expected Expected  carrying  allowance
loss rate loss rate amount  provision
it it ERER
BRx BREEX RELE B
Within 30 days 30HA 0.14% 31,216 44 0.08% 37,034 29
31 to 180 days 31£180H 0.32% 49,011 156 0.17% 26,799 45
181 to 1 year 181 E1F 32.26% 963 311 22.77% 1,296 294
1 1o 2 years 1828 58.33% 1,022 596 77.47% 708 549
2 to 3 years 2E3F 100.00% 637 637 100.00% - -
Over 3 years HIB3F 100.00% 40 40 100.00% 40 40
82,889 1,784 65,877 957
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3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

R REEEm®

3.1

B 7 & be A & (@)

3.1 EER K@

(iv) Forward-looking information (ivV BRHIGEEER
incorporated in the expected credit A FIE M E
loss model (Continued) & (4&)
Prepayments and other receivables ERRERAEME
(excluding prepaid income tax, prepaid WREBE(FEEAE
value added tax, and recoverable value TEABH - AMAE
added tax) EBEHREATEWKIEE

)
31 December 2019
2019512 A318
RMB'000
ARETT
Basis for recognition Gross Loss
Expected  of expected credit Expected  carrying allowance
loss rate  loss provision loss rate amount  provision
Bl RHEEREAR i BRER
BRX BRARLE BRX KR B
Deposits 11.62% 12 months expected 892 104 10.00% 513 52
losses
ko NEAESER
Advances to employees  11.62% 12 months expected 858 100  10.00% 650 65
losses
XNTEERER NEAESER
Amounts due from 0.21% 12 months expected 409 1 0.01% 468 -
related parties losses
FE W BB 75 3M0R NEAESER
Others 11.62% 12 months expected 64 7 10.00% 9 9
losses
Hith NEAESER
2,223 212 2,542 209

W ZRAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

3

120

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate amount of available financing,
including loans from related parties to meet its
daily operation working capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities for:

(@)  all non-derivative financial liabilities; and

(b) net settled derivative financial instruments
for which the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows.

Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

The fair value of the Group’s derivative financial
instruments was RMB4,726,000 on the debit side
as at 31 December 2020 (RMB14,472,000 on the
credit side as at 31 December 2019) within the
less than 12 months time bucket. This is because
the contractual maturities are not essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
These contracts are managed on a net fair value
basis rather than by maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B 7 A b2 & 32 (@)
3.1 B E R REZE@®
3.2 "B E € & B (|

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Less than Over
1 year 1 year
PRA—F BiE—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Non-derivatives FTETR
As at 31 December 2020 720205128318
Trade and other payables B 5 K H ith 1 50IE 50,826 417
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,759 2,176
54,585 2,593
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019%12A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 & EH e 58 31,172 999
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,863 5,671
35,035 6,670
Derivatives fTET A
As at 31 December 2020 7A2020%12H31H
Derivative financial instruments PmEem I A 4,726 -
As at 31 December 2019 A2019%12A31H
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA (14,472) -

Trade and other payables here exclude non-
financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other

taxes payable.

RETEE 5 I H A FE A 5K
AR R R EM

ENREBEZIFERMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)y 3 Bf %A & & B ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MR EEZE @
3.1.3 Foreign exchange risk 313 9ME & B
The Group sells products internationally and AEEREHAEEERD
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising BEBRINERZFEE 2 HD
from foreign currency transactions, primarily Rk E2RET S
with respect to the USD. Foreign exchange risk fEREBRERKEERS
arises from future commercial transactions and MAFEEEEAER 2D
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a EEBcE¥ T EZD®
currency that is not the functional currency of the REERARE-
relevant Group entity.
The Group also entered into foreign currency ANEEE PR K12(8 AET 7
forwards in relation to products sales for the FHERHEE ZNE R
next 12 months that do not qualify as ‘highly e HAAFaRE
probable’ forecast transactions and hence do not AREMIcERRS -
satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting bt A E R g R (K
(economic hedges). The foreign currency forwards B M) Elk o SN R HR
are subject to the same risk management policies EREAXMBEEMITES
as all other derivative contracts. However, they are #2948 R B b B IR BR R
accounted for as derivative financial instruments R AW BEREGED
with gains (losses) recognised in profit or loss HlmkzERZAD®
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive RZITESBMI AR/
income. (B 1) ARR -
The following table summarises the sensitivity of TERBARNEESREE
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities & & @ aE Y IMNE & bz r)
to foreign exchange risk based on the assumption B HEBREETH
that USD had strengthened/weakened by 10% AR¥EFE,B2E10%
against RMB with all other variables held constant: meTAE EMmEERSED
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019
20194
RMB'000
AR F T
RMB/USD exchange rate ARBHETEX
— increase 10% - #R10% 6,220 4,642
RMB/USD exchange rate ARMEHETEZX
— decrease 10% - [ 1£10% (6,220) (4,642)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

R REEEm®
3.2 EXEHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
maintained at net cash position.

AEBNERAEEREEHRER
SERELENED  KHA
BAARHELDR  SEMFNH
ERHEMNE  YHFERNE
REBIARAREARRLA

RIRBAREELAERE K
SEAESRHERRRNDN
BB BIHBROILE
BENBDER

AEBENEABBLERER
ERHEER - 2L XRRFEE
FRAREARGHE - FRERER
BRAEIREEEMTE -
RERIZ R A MR R PP
ARO[t I FRERE -

A2020F % 2019412 A31H » K
EEHGFFEFR e MAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

3

124

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation

(i)

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets (i)

and financial liabilities

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group has
classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
An explanation of each level follows underneath

R REEm®

3.3 A EMGE

TREERTHMAER

A ERER

T—‘-‘AA:-

= A

7 85 [l 2t 7 R A R Rk
PR MR A TEFEN
TR TARFEMELD
HIEr AR - RBHERH
BERFEMBEABE
ZAEEER  AEED
R TE 5 H E A
TADR=ZEZFH  BF
BN TRETEA -

the table.
Recurring fair value measurements BEML-FETE
Note
it
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318
Financial assets SREE
Foreign currency forwards MNERBED 23 = 4,726 = 4,726
Wealth management BERTETL
products issued by BHEM
commercial banks 23 = = 40,000 40,000
- 4,726 40,000 44,726
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ F_E FZE B
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTT ARBTT AR®Tr AR®ETR
At 31 December 2019 #2019512A31A
Financial liabilities tREE
Foreign currency forwards MEREBED 23 - 14,472 - 14,472

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements
(Continued)

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2
and level 3 for recurring fair value measurements
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019,

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
guoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 1:

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=& B S 8 AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements
(Continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

R REEEm®
3.3 A2 EMEF @

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques used to (i) BEEAFEFAMGE

determine fair values B 1l

Specific valuation techniques used to value s TEMASEM

financial instruments include: BERMELE:

. the use of quoted market prices or dealer . KABEUIAMNT
quotes for similar instruments BHREXRXHE B

B

e for forward currency forwards — based on . EBINERBBAED
forward exchange rates at the end of the - RBEHPEER
reporting period 1R, H) FE [ &

e other techniques, such as discounted cash . H A B i - 1 1A #r
flow analysis WIREMEDN

There were no changes in valuation techniques HZE2020F K% 201912 A

during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 for recurring fair value measurements during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

W ZRAERAA

JNELEFE  HERMT

HZE2020F % 2019F12 A
BMALEFE  AEEER
FEFEMS  F—B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
aRE I AR R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

3

128

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)y 3  Bf 3§ & B B 32 ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A EMEF @

(iii) Valuation inputs and relationships to
fair value (Level 3)

Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable

Description December 2020 Technique inputs

(i) HEBAMBRAT

BExBER(E=ZE)

Range of inputs Relationship of

(probability-  unobservable

weighted average) inputs to fair value

#2020 FABRE BAHBHEE TUBEBAZE
it 12A3MBRZATFE HERN BARE (BEMETFHE) H"AFEZBEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Wealth management products issued by 40,000 Discounted cash Rate of return 2.70%-3.10%  The higher the rate of
commercial banks flow method (2.90%) return, the higher
the fair value
BERTBICEMER HRALRERE BHRE BHEDS

If the rate of return of wealth management
products issued by commercial banks held by
the Group had been 1% higher/lower, the
profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been approximately
RMB400,000 higher/lower.

BAFERE

MAEBEIF AR FERITE
TZBEMERZEFHRE L
/T B1% - H Z=2020
FRANBLEFENBRET
S AR M A #3800, R
DA R#400,0007T °

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 E K=:it{hst5% H

JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the REBEHRREL BT RBREZ - B
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, NEFHAREERIERRVREH
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and ERER - U TAYH TEPRFEREN
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material EERBEREENE KHAEEK
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BRARONMEFTREREN R

within the next financial year are addressed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

4 ERGFHEFTTRAEF@®

(@)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

130

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture
and processing of wax products, metal products, glass
products and aromatherapy products. The CODM reviews the
operating results of the business as one operating segment to
make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM regards that there is only one segment which is used
to make strategic decisions.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC.

Revenue from external parties contributing 10% or more of
the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

7 & & #

EEERBEATIELERRERN
MR EEETEENE - TBEEZER
RERARRMBITEST AEDE
BREFHEREDMHOREA -

AEETZNEEEN  SBEM
BEEMMREEEM IR  HER
MT - TBRERRERZAXZKE
RERENH  BHELEES
PABLE R AR 20 B AF R SR BRIt
TERERRERRER —EAF
B R 0 B e

20204 K 2019%F 12 A31H » AEE
HETBEERBEEHLUNFE -

KEINBALTERAEE AR A10%

Customer A ZPEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C BPFC
Customer D ZFD

FA EZHAMT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BILLEE
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBFTT
63,037 81,361
59,601 53,287
57,158 60,582
48,755 58,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S EL T LE )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by product

type is as follows:

Revenue from customers: REZEFZWA:

6

LGN ER-J %
AEFHZERBELE KA RH
ERADTAT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost of
Revenue sales
N 5 & A AR

Candles 4 18 299,644 (230,429) 318,808 (233,880)
Home fragrance REBE 83,155 (66,591) 91,150 (61,160)
Home accessories R /E & A 89,380 (67,010) 91,173 (72,412)
472,179 (364,030) 501,131 (367,452)
Timing of revenue recognition Y A ## 52 B il
- At a point in time - He52h 472,179 501,131

Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from wholesale of

goods.

WATEBEMEERMEKIEA -

W ZRAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES (continued) 6 WA K 888 K& @)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by REBEREBERXS DB WA K H
business model is as follows: ERADTWT :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MBILLEE
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost of
Revenue sales
A FicR=I BN
Revenue from customers: REZEFZWA:
Wholesale Ht 2% 461,918 (359,240) 497,963 (365,831)
Retail TE 10,261 (4,790) 3,168 (1,621)
472,179 (364,030) 501,131 (367,452)
(@) Contract liabilities (@) EHERE
The Group recognised the following revenue-related AEEBRRBTINKRARENE
contract liabilities: HEeE:

As at 31 December
®W12A831H

2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Advanced payments from customers K EEF Z 1 HIA 3,819 4,054
(b) Significant change in contract liabilities (b) EHNEBNEKREH
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the AEENENEEFTEEEE
advanced payments made by customers while the BEPENBENRIE - T8

underlying goods are yet to be delivered. Emm AR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £2020F12A31HILFE

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognised in relation to
contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 related to carried-forward contract liabilities.

6 WAKREERZEm
() MENEBEINVKWA

T &R BN E E 20204 K 20194
RANBLEFEHREBEE

Revenue recognised that was included FTAFEAAIEB &
in the contract liabilities balance at iR HIH A
the beginning of the year
Advanced payments from customers KBRS Z

ARHEERBA -
Year ended 31 December
BEZE1N2AMBLEEE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
=3
FKIA 4,054 2,428

Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group applies the practical expedient and does
not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one
year of less.

Assets recognised from incremental
costs to obtain a contract

Contract obtaining costs incurred related to contracts
such as sales commissions with an amortisation period
of one year or less have been expensed as incurred.

d) RETHEHNER

AEERBNAERNEREZ
&t I 4 B B IR TR AT B
R—FHATHBRTEOES

B e
(e) BEEBEANMNEEHX
BANEE

IBNELEZBRBANZKA
(Pl EHA —FRATZHE
ME)EREERIERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7

BEEETHRAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE

2019

20194

RMB’000

AR T T

Raw materials and consumables used BT AR M EE OB 3 158,277 150,403

Subcontracting costs AN DN 171,680 182,704

Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1B E & X (A 728) 51,294 54,165

Transportation expenses RiBRZ 13,738 15,336

Utilities NS 2,873 3,195
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERKHEITE

equipment (Note 15) (H1a15) 7,850 3,638
Depreciation of investment properties wEMERE K iE16)

(Note 16) 111 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEBE(WF17)

(Note 17) 639 419
Amortisation and depreciation of TRAEEEHERTE

right-of-use assets (Note 18) (B 218) 4,513 2,444
Taxes and surcharges i I8 K M on & 2,510 3,299
Travelling expenses IR X 1,005 2,031
Operating lease expenses on HEAERKEHERS

short-term leases 1,706 640
Business entertainment expenses EBHBERX 673 784
Sample inspection and express fees EmRE RREE 4,678 2,876
Advertising and promotion expenses & R ERZ 3,876 1,222
Auditor’s remuneration Z EED Bl &

- Annual audit service - FEEZRB 1,311 1,150
Statutory audit fees EEBEZER 73 165
Other service fees E b fR 75 & 1,755 1,241
Listing expenses X 512 18,116
Office expenses WA 1,228 668
Insurance expenses RE 172 237
Sales commission HEMS 1,323 876
Others Hh, 724 728

432,521 446,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IEFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

8 EERAMMAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE

2019

20194

RMB’'000

AR T T

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE  Fa Rkt 42,981 44,185

Pension costs (Note a) BAIKE KA (K aFa) 502 4,992
Housing funds, medical insurances and {EEAES ~ BEERHB M

other social insurances (Note b) Etrt e R (A aFb) 5,177 4,065

Other employee benefits E b fE 818 7 2,634 923

51,294 54,165

Note a: As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC contribute to state-sponsored retirement plans
for their employees. The employees contribute approximately 8% of
their basic salaries, while the subsidiaries contribute approximately
13-14% of the basic salaries of their respective employees and have
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

Note b:  Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and
other employee social insurance plans. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on approximately 25.4% of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceilings. The Group's
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each period.

Hiita:

Brath

W ZRAERAA

RE R A AR BIRTRE - R R B AE
WHBATINAEEERNERE BN
RIRFHEMEEHR - BEREEARE
& #18% 1E L 3k - MM B A R AliE
HEAEBEAFSHI3E1A%RIED
HR - BRERN Y EBR IR
KESRIKERFEMEMET -
AREHZRATEAEINEST
BEKEBEZEZBEKS -

RNEBEzAEEREFESME BT
BEEERATRE  BEAREEM
EEHERRHE - AKEEA%E
BTEMN254%RZEESERHR
AXELRBRR - BRAZEESZASE
ERENSHEZENSHERERG -

—E-2EEH 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 8 EEEBABIZm@

(@) Five highest paid individuals (@) AfuB S HFEHM AL
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five H E2020F12A31HILFE -
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in REEONRAUESHFWHALTE
the Group include 1 (2019: 2) director 2020 whose E— (20195 : B i) ¥ =F -
emolument is reflected in the analysis shown in Note HE B2 SO R M 5342 DT
34. The emoluments payable to the remaining 4 (2019: A o JEMH B IUAL (20195 - =
3) individuals are as follows: M) EAZSOEHEHOT :

Year ended 31 December
BZENRAMBLEEE

2019

20194

RMB’'000

ARET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - FHehits 1,237 1,222

Pension costs BIRE KA 35 171
Housing funds, medical insurances and FEAE S - BERKE

other social insurances N E bt & (RER 135 133

1,407 1,526

The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZETMNEATEREN
Number of individuals
A
Year ended 31 December
BZE1R2AMBLEEE

2019

20194
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) i & E (LA B T R)

Nil = HK$500,000 = 2 500,000/ JT 4 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9
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iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £2020F12A31HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9 Hft=
Year ended 31 December
BEZE1N2A3MBLLEE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Rental income & W= 514 -
Government grants (Note) BT 8 BY (7 7E) 7,700 1,919
Others i 386 -
8,600 1,919
Note: Government grants were mainly unconditional government subsidies Mat: BN EERAE B S 8@ B A

received by the Group from relevant government bodies.

OTHER GAIN/(LOSSES) — NET

10 Higzs

%5

~

BB BRI BT RERS -

EiE) -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2019
20194
RMB’000
AREF T
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE - BMEMZHE

plant and equipment — net B8 - FE (72) (38)
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets Bz & ff & E WK %

- net - FH 118 -
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNEE (B 1B), W F 8 (17,339) 5,521
Net realised and unrealised fair value INEIRERAE N 2B E R

gains/(losses) on foreign exchange RABRAFERZ

forward contracts (E18) 758 17,357 (27,559)
Donation expenses BHFAX (1,000) (400)
Others Hib 1,071 (612)

135 (23,088)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

11 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 1M1 BBk (RAER) - F
L]
Year ended 31 December
BHE1N2AMBLEEE

2019

20194

RMB'000

ARET T
Finance income B 7% R 2=

Interest income B U A 902 119
Finance costs B % B A

Interest expenses MERX = (250)

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMNERX (403) (264)

(403) (514)

499 (395)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12

SUBSIDIARIES

R EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

The Group's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and 2019 and
as at the date of issue of these financial statements are set
out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of
ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the

Group.

Place and date
of incorporation/

Attributable equity interest

12 KB

N EE B 20204 X 2019512 A318 &
REHZENBHRERAPZHE AT
RTXEY - REEHRBEEIN - B
NAZBARARNEEEZEFT BN
BB EEZLNERNEASEER
Bl ERE-

Attributable
equity
interest of the
Group as at

the date of Principal activities/place of

Names of the subsidiaries  establishment Issued capital of the Group this report operation
RARERH
EREL/ FREREEE
MELRERE RIMERAH BRTRE BERERERTER WAz TEEDH/LeEny
31 December
12A318
2019 %
20195
Kwung's Investments Limited BV UsD1 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Intermediate holding company
15 November 2018
BEREFRAR RERIEE E 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% FEERAE
20185114154
Kwung's Wisdom (Hongkong) ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Intermediate holding company
Co., Limited ("Kwung's HK") 27 November 2018
RUEERER)ARAT Bk 1T 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% FEZKEAT
(EtEE) 2018 11A278
Ningbo Kwung's PRC RMB91,000,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Design, manufacture and
4 January 1999 processing; Wholesale and
retail company
BREH HE AR %91,000,0007 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Hit HERMIEE: #HER
199951748 ZENT
Ningbo Koman Import and PRC RMB1,500,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Import or export of self-
export Co., Ltd. 16 August 2012 employed or agent goods and
technology
ERTEENMOARAR HE AR #1,500,000T 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% BREXREERRFMELD
2012487168
Ningbo Aromage Homeware ~ PRC RMB1,000,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. 11 August 2014 items, handicrafts
EREEBRREAR i AR 1,000,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% KEER  FIZMmIBER

BRAF

2014F8A118

TE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

12

140

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Names of the subsidiaries

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Issued capital

HEY/
MEARAR RUGHERAH BRTRA
Neobee Australia Pty Limited ~ Australia AUD240,000
29 June, 2017
Neobee Australia Pty Limited R 240,0002 T
2017564298
Shaoxing Keyuan Arts and PRC RMB20,000,000
Crafts Co., Ltd. 17 September 2018
AETRIZRERAA Gl AR 20,000,000
2018594178
Shaoxing Shi Jingming Cultural ~ PRC RMB1,080,000
Development Co., Ltd. 20 December 2005
("Shaoxing Jingming”)
(Note 4)
RATSANLERERLT PE A K 11,080,000
(RE2R M7 2005612 420
Ningbo Fenyuan Aromatherapy ~ PRC RMB1,000,000
Products Co., Ltd. (Note 1) 7 January 2019
ERFEEEHRERAR  PE AR 81,000,007
(W) 201951478
Ningbo Wanweipulian PRC RMB5,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. (Vote 3) 30 June 2020
("Wanweipulian”)
ERBHERNREERARN  PE AR 5,000,0007T
(Ha3) B ER) 2020%6A308
Hangzhou Aromage Homeware  PRC RMB500,000
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 21 May 2019
MHEERRRERR i AR 500,000
BRAR(HHE2) 201955218

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED = Annual Report 2020

12 Hf B A=)«

Attributable
equity
interest of the
Group as at

Attributable equity interest the date of

&)

Principal activities/place of

of the Group this report operation
RARERH
GERAEE
BERAEERLESR Rags TEEH/Leuy
31 December
12A318
2019 %
20195
80.00% 80.00% 80.00% Trading Company
80.00% 80.00% 80.00% Z5N7
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Design, manufacture and
processing of wax products
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% EHmz& HERMNT
= - - Design, manufacture and
processing of wax products
= - — BRmzEE BERNI
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Design,manufacture and
processing of wax
products,metal products and
glass products
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% #EE 2EERRRBERZ
Rt HERNMI
100.00% N/A 100.00% Inspection and testing services
100.00% TR 100.00% 5 BB # R
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
items, handicrafts
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% HERTEXERE FIEm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IEFE

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 i B 28 @)
Attributable
equity
interest of the
Place and date Group as at

of incorporation/

Attributable equity interest

the date of

Principal activities/place of

Names of the subsidiaries  establishment Issued capital of the Group this report operation
RARERH
ERAL/ BRERARE
WEARER RUMERAH BRARE BERARERLER WAz TEEDH/LeEny
31 December
12A318
2019 %
2019%
Beijing Aromage Homeware PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 6 November 2019 items, handicrafts
TREERRRERD HE AE#500,0007 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% #ERZEREEE  FIZM
BRAA(H22) 2019%11 A6
Wuxi Aromage Homeware PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 22 November 2019 items, handicrafts
EHTEBRREAR e AR 500,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% HERTEXERE FIEm
BRAA(H72) 20195114228
Taizhou Aromage Homeware ~ PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 16 December 2019 items, handicrafts
ANBERREERAR HE AR %500,0007 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% HERTEREEE  FIER
BRAA (B 72) 2019% 12168
Shaoxing Aromage Homeware ~ PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 3 April 2020 items, handicrafts
RATERRRERR i AR 500,000 100.00% - 100.00% HERTERERE FI1€m
BRAA(72) 20205430
Suzhou Aromage Homeware PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 5 June 2020 items, handicrafts
BNEERRZERD ik AR 500,000 100.00% - 100.00% HERTEXERE FI1Em
BRRAHZ2) 202056158
Jinhua Aromage Homeware PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 22 June 2020 items, handicrafts
TERERARERD e AR %500,0007 100.00% - 10000% HERTEREEE FIZm
BRARME2) 2020%56/228
Shanghai Yukeyuxiang PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Homeware Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 13 Oct 2020 items, handicrafts
LERNENEZEAR e AR 8500,0007 100.00% - 100.00% HERTEXERE FIEm
AR (H22) 20205108138

W ZRAERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

142

12 i B 28 @

Attributable
equity
interest of the
Place and date Group as at
of incorporation/ Attributable equity interest the date of Principal activities/place of
Names of the subsidiaries  establishment Issued capital of the Group this report operation
REARERS
HMAL/ BERARE
WEARER R E R A BRTRE BERREERKESR RAgR IEED/BEnY
31 December
12318
2019 %
2019%
Nanjing Aromage Homeware ~ PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 4 December 2020 items, handicrafts
HRBRERRRERR e AR 500,000 100.00% - 100.00% HERTEREEE FIER
BRARHE2) 2020512748
Chongging Aromage Homeware ~ PRC RMB500,000 100.00% - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 11 December 2020 items, handicrafts
ERTERAZERR i AR 500,000 100.00% - 100.00% HERTEXERE FIZm
BRAR(HH2) 20205128118
Note 1. Ningbo Fenyuan was established in the PRC in 2019 as a wholly- BfaEr: BEFENR2019FEFREK N - BiE
owned subsidiary of Kwung’s HK. HHEAENZEMBRA °
Note 2: Shaoxing Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., Suzhou Aromage Homeware Hit2: RAFZERRREARBRAF - &
Co., Ltd., Jinhua Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., Shanghai Yukeyuxiang MNEERAXEARERAAR - &%
Homeware Co., Ltd., Nanjing Aromage Homeware Co., and BERRREAMERRQF - £8P
Chongging Aromage Homeware Co., were established in 2020 as EPERERMBRAR  BREE
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Ningbo Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd. BRRXEARERARREETER
Hangzhou Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., Beijing Aromage Homeware KREXEAMRBERABR2020F K A
Co., Ltd., Wuxi Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., and Taizhou Aromage ERBERRREARAERAANS
Homeware Co., Ltd. were established in 2019 as wholly-owned BNBAR - MMNBERRREA®
subsidiaries of Ningbo Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd. BRAF - ERBERRREARE
RAR -  BEHEERAREARAR
ARARAMNBERAREARERR
AR2019F KL AERBTERRRE
ARERARINEENEAR -
Note 3: Wanweipulian was established in the PRC on 30 June 2020 as a Hfat3: Bk E B 202066 4308 1E B AX
wholly-owned subsidiary of Ningbo Kwung's. VUREERBEHNEZEAMBEAR -
Note 4: Ningbo Kwung’s and Ningbo Fenyuan are registered as wholly Mata: ZREHRERZEBEPBEEEZS

foreign owned enterprises under PRC law. All the other subsidiaries
established in the PRC are either directly or indirectly held by Ningbo
Kwung's and registered as domestic companies under PRC law.

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED = Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FIEBMAX
The amounts of income tax expense charged to the A EERRIMGENAX®HE
Consolidated statement of profit or loss represent: =

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLFE
2019
20194F
RMB'000
ARBFT

Current income tax BVER P15 30

— PRC corporate income tax - PR EMEH 4,773 6,663
Deferred income tax (Note 30) IR IE BT 15 5 (B i 30)

— PRC corporate income tax -HRCEMER 2,533 (1,905)
Income tax expense s A X 7,306 4,758
(@) Cayman Island income tax () MEFEMSEH

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as ARl RBERERS RAE
an exempted company with limited liability under the RRASHESHEMKR INERS
Companies Law of Cayman lIslands and accordingly, is BERAGR Hit - BE#R2EMN
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. MERSMEN -

(b) British Virgin Islands income tax (b) KBEEXBHEREH
Under the current laws of the British Virgin Islands, BRERBREZBHSHEEERE
entities incorporated in British Virgin Islands are not REBRZESHMK L&
subject to tax on their income or capital gains. BEm AR s sl B A W S B

() Hong Kong profits tax ) BEAFNEH
Income tax provision of the Group in respect of REBBREBLCEFEHOFR
operations in Hong Kong has been calculated at the SHBRBERBRITEAR B
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits B RIER - DATE (L B E 20204
for the year ended 31 December 2020, based on the 12A31H IEFE & ERB & F
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in BE AT ETE - B E20205F
respect thereof. The statutory tax rate was 16.5% for RAJNBLEFE  EZEBREA
the year ended 31 December 2020. No provision for 16.5% ° F 70 B) A %6 A T 3R A
Hong Kong profits tax was made for the year ended TIEE 18 - WA 22020512 H
31 December 2020 as the utilisation of previously BVHLEFERESRBFBENGEN
recognized tax losses. The Group did not derive any EHBE - REEH E20195F
income subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the year 12A3MB IEFE I 8 & £ B
ended 31 December 2019. MEBNERN TS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

13

144

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(d) PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at
the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable
profits for the years, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The
statutory tax rate was 25% for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Ningbo Kwung's was qualified as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) since 2008 and
renewed its qualification in December 2020. It is subject
to a reduced preferential corporate income tax rate of
15% from 2020 to December 2023 according to the
applicable tax preference applicable to the HNTE.

According to the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was
effective from 2018, during the period from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020, enterprises engaging in
research and development activities are entitled to claim
175% of their research and development expenses
incurred as tax deductible expenses when determining
their assessable profits for that year (“Super Deduction”),
while the deduction rate was 150% before then.
The Group has made its best estimate for the Super
Deduction to be claimed for the Group’s entities in
ascertaining their assessable profits during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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LT o
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iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13 FrEHHAX®w
(d) PRC corporate income tax (Continued) d) HEBELEMREH @
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARBF T
Profit before income tax R AT 15 154 A1 g A 48,062 32,568
Tax calculated at applicable corporate % i Fi 1> 2 AT 15 B Fi R
income tax rate of 25% 25% st H &9 i 18 12,015 8,142
Tax effects of: LWTEERBTE:
— Expenses not deductible for - BWIEME AA]
taxation purposes B X 132 63
— Preferential income tax rate applied - &8 B tt 3@ FH 59
in Ningbo Kwung's BEMEHBE (4,864) (6,407)
— Super deduction for research and - MY 2 B
development expenses N (1,806) (2,455)
— Utilisation of previously - B A LA ARER
unrecognised tax losses 1 18 & 18 (287) -
— Deductible tax losses and - ABERBEEFE
temporary differences not W& EMATHE
recognised for deferred income TIAEE RE
tax assets Z 2,116 5,415
Income tax expense Fris®im X 7,306 4,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issued during the
period.

14

BERER

(@ BEREXREZF
HE2020F12A31HILEEE R
BEARBFIZHANERRRES

A A 3 I DA 2 4T % 3R B
AT B E -

Year ended 31 December

Profit attributable to owners of KAREE A EAE S F
the Company (RMB’000) (AE®BTFT)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue
(expressed in thousand)

Basic earnings per share for profit A& A A FE 1k % F
attributable to the owners of the B TR ERERF
Company (expressed in RMB (B8R ARBERTR)

per share)

BT E AR N
FH AT B SIR)

BZENRAMBLEEE
2019
20194
40,846 27,820
400,461 300,000
10.2 cents & 9.3 cents &

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
diluted earnings per share was equal to the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive shares.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b T EL A )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

15 ME - BERRE

As at 1 January 2020 }20206131A
Cost KA 27,869 2,153 2,038 11,759 2,018 15,553 4,814 66,804
Accumulated depreciation 21 & (7,003) (2,394) (1,349) (4,116) (1,188) (2,476) - (18,526)
Net book value BEFE 20,866 359 689 7,643 830 13,077 4,814 48,278
Year ended 31 220205128318

December 2020 LEE
Opening net book value ~ FEEFE 20,866 359 689 7,643 830 13,077 4,814 48,278
Additions RE 26 1872 524 1,870 173 5,570 1,072 11,107
Transfers gz (5,106) = = = = 930 (1,730) (5,906)
Disposals & = (123) - (39) = - = (162)
Depreciation (Note 7) TEWH7) (912) (94) (191) (946) (171) (5,536) - (7,850)
Closing net book valuee ~ FREEFE 14,874 2,014 1,022 8,528 832 14,041 4,156 45,467
As at 31 December R2020%12831A

2020
Cost [ 20,362 3,397 2,562 13,240 2,191 22,053 4,156 67,961
Accumulated depreciation 23t E (5,488) (1,383) (1,540) (4,112 (1,359) (8,012) - (22,494)
Net book value RFaFE 14,874 2,014 1,022 8,528 832 14,041 4,156 45,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

148

(Continued)

15 ME BEERRE@®

Transportation Electronic Leasehold ~ Assets under
Buildings equipment  equipment  Machinery Furniture  improvements  construction Total
5 BHERE  ETHE B FE  BERE ERAE aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBFT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFR ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%1B1A
Cost A 19,676 2753 1,811 10,104 1,453 2521 8,150 46,468
Accumulated depreciation 23t & (5,999) 2,115) (1,305) (3,397) (953) (1,345) - (15,114)
Net book value BEEE 13,677 638 506 6,707 500 1,176 8,150 31,354
Year ended BZ2019%125318
31 December 2019 LEE
Opening net book value ~ F#EAEE 13,677 638 506 6,707 500 1,176 8,150 31,354
Additions WE - - 357 1,807 236 - 18,218 20,618
Transfers B 8,193 - - - 329 13,032 (21,554) -
Disposals mE - - (13) (43) - - - (56)
Depreciation (Vote 7) nEWE) (1,004) (279) (161) (828) (235) (1131) - (3,638)
Closing net book value ~ FREEFE 20,866 359 689 7,643 830 13,077 4,814 48278
As at R2019%12A318
31 December 2019
Cost KA 27,869 2,753 2,038 11,759 2,018 15,553 4,814 66,804
Accumulated depreciation 23t & (7,003) (2,394) (1,349) (4,116) (1,188) (2,476) - (18,526)
Net book value EHFE 20,866 359 689 7,643 830 13,077 4,814 48,278

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 1% - MERRZRE@®

(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment was charged to M¥E BELRBINECREES
the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 7) R EDMBRET
as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARBTF T

Cost of sales 35 & A AR 3,724 1,481
Administrative expenses THHEX 2,949 1,695
Research and development expenses it % F 2 371 462
Selling expenses HERX 806 -
7,850 3,638
As at 31 December 2020, assets under construction mainly 2020128318 - EREE X E45

represented the machinery costs of Ningbo Kwung's. B2 R U A M AL B R o

As at 31 December 2019, assets under construction mainly R2019F 128318 EEEEETEE

represented the machinery costs of Ningbo Kwung's and B2/ U R B OR RO MR o

Ningbo Fenyuan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

16

150

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are located in the PRC. The movement
of investment properties is analysed as follows:

16

REWR

WEWEMNTR KEMEZE
oM

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLEE
2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARBTT
Cost X AR 7,403 -
Accumulated depreciation 2FIE (2,408) -
Net book value REFE 4,995 -
Opening net book value FHRMmFEE = -
Transfer e 5,106 -
Depreciation (Note 7) e izE7) (111) -
Closing net book value FRIEMFE 4,995 -

Lease rental income relating to the lease of investment
properties has been included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

HIREME s HERFBZEERES
WaEbtAGZEEEKaERIT

Year ended 31 December

2 U &

Rental income

Depreciation of investment properties was charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 7) as
follows:

BZ12A31BLEE

2019

20194

RMB’000

ARET T

514 -

KEWERTEENGEEZERER

(=7 T -
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31MBLEE

2019

20194

RMB’000

ARET T

THRFAX

Administrative expenses

11 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 BEREE

Patent right Software Total
= F B &=t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBETT AREFTRIT AR®TT
At 1 January 2020 7R2020F1H18
Cost B 7R 998 4,893 5,891
Accumulated amortisation EREH (835) (1,552) (2,387)
Net book value BRTEFE 163 3,341 3,504
Year ended 31 December 2020 # £2020%12H31H
IEEE
Opening net book value FHEEFE 163 3,341 3,504
Additions NE 117 981 1,098
Transfer R = 800 800
Amortisation (Note 7) BESE (W at7) (69) (570) (639)
Closing net book value FAREmFEE 211 4,552 4,763
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
Cost DN 1,115 6,674 7,789
Accumulated amortisation EEtEH (904) (2,122) (3,026)
Net book value REFE 21 4,552 4,763
At 1 January 2019 #2019 1A41A
Cost DN 974 3,519 4,493
Accumulated amortisation R (766) (1,202) (1,968)
Net book value R FE 208 2,317 2,525
Year ended 31 December 2019  # £2019%12H31H
IEEE
Opening net book value FYRBFE 208 2,317 2,525
Additions NE 24 1,374 1,398
Amortisation (Note 7) B (W iET7) (69) (350) (419)
Closing net book value FREMEFE 163 3,341 3,504
At 31 December 2019 7A2019%12831H
Cost B 7R 998 4,893 5,891
Accumulated amortisation RET 8 (835) (1,552) (2,387)
Net book value REFEE 163 3,341 3,504
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets was charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 7) as

follows:

17 BEXEE @

EHEEBHOAGRASEBRE
(B 3E7) FUBR 20 T -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLFEE
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETTT
Administrative expenses THRAZ 639 419
18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18 FRAEEE
As at 31 December
M12831H
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETF T
Land use rights T+t AR 7,511 7,757
Properties LES 5,517 8,963
13,028 16,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(1) Land use rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments for land located in the PRC
and the lease term is 50 years. The net book amount
of land use right is analysed as follows:

FRAEEE®
(1) T iufF AR

REEH T MEBERZIER
URFPEN T BEMNEEH
Btk mEEHAS0F - +
W AEREFESTWOT

Year ended 31 December
BZE1R2A3MBLEEE

2019

20194

RMB’'000

ARETIT

Cost 7R 10,807 10,807
Accumulated depreciation EEr#H (3,296) (3,050)
Net book value R TEFE 7,511 7,757
Opening net book value FYEREFE 7,757 8,003
Amortisation charges (Note 7) BEERWZ7) (246) (246)
Closing net book value FREMEFE 7,511 7,757

Amortisation charges have been charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss as

BEERCNGEA2EEERR
MEwmT:

follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZENRAMBLEEE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
Administrative expenses THAX 246 246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
aRE I AR R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 18

154

(2) Properties

The Group leases properties for own use. Information
about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented

FRAEEE®
(2) ¥z

AEEHEMEDHRER - &
RAKEERABANHEESR

below: BEANMT:
Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLLEE

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cost DN 11,547 12,176
Accumulated depreciation E5th e (6,030) (3,213)
Net book value REFE 5,517 8,963
Opening net book value FHRBEFE 8,963 5,220
Addition NE 1,691 5,941
Disposals & (870) -
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WwEBRHMNE7) (4,267) (2,198)
Closing net book value FRE®FE 5,517 8,963

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and the consolidated statements of cash flows contain
the following amounts relating to leases:

FArzEREREEARERN
EXRERUTAREEN S

Year ended 31 December

Depreciation and amortisation charges
of right-of-use assets

Interest paid

Expenses relating to low value of
short term leases

The cash outflows for leases as
operating activities

The cash outflows for leases as
financing activities

EREEEFTENEE
£

2 E
REERENESHEE
F 32
HEELSEZEHH
BEm
HEESRERDN
BEmH

BZ12A31BLLEE
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETT
4,267 2,198
403 264
1,706 640
1,706 640
4,302 1,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 ®ZERl&Eloz&@mIT A
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEFBEUTERIA:
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2019
20194
Note RMB'000
k3 ARETTT
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at amortised HEBHEK A2
cost: TREE E
Trade receivables =Y A& 21 81,105 64,920
Other receivables (excluding H fth /B W FRB
recoverable value added tax) (AJ Yy Bl 42 E T
B S 22 2,223 2,542
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 25 110,735 67,843
Other current assets EMne&EE 24 20,000 -
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss EMEE 23 44,726 -
258,789 135,305
As at 31 December
®W12H31H
2019
20194
Note RMB'000
ikza ARETTT
Financial liabilities TRBaE
Liabilities at amortised cost: R A B1E:
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERKIE
(excluding staff salaries (ENBEHE R
and welfare payables and B E A
accrued taxes other than (P18 BB SN
income tax) k& M) 28 51,243 32,170
Lease liabilities HESE 29 5,935 9,534
Financial liabilities at fair value R AFEFAEZR 2
through profit or loss THREE 23 - 14,472
57,178 56,176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

20

INVENTORIES 20 £ E
As at 31 December
®12A31H

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Raw materials R 25,427 23,300
Work in progress B fn 3,688 2,818
Finished goods 2K & 26,028 16,583
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & J5 (B % & (112) (30)
55,031 42,671

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income amounted to RMB350,292,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB352,116,000).

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES

H 22020128318 1L £ E - W HE
RERAITIHITALEEZHE K ZE
RAMEERAINFEXRABAR
#350,292,0007C (20195 : A R #&
352,116,0007T) °

21 ESEWRE

As at 31 December

®W12H31H
2019
20194
RMB’000
AR T T
Trade receivables due from third EWE=HF2
parties B 5 ERRE 82,889 65,877
Less: Allowance for impairment of BB S ERFIERE
trade receivables B (1,784) (957)
Trade receivables — net ESEWRE - £ 81,105 64,920

Trade receivables all arise from sales of goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables before provision were
denominated in the following currencies:

g 5 E W FIE m)
20204 K 2019412 A31H - R E
AEZRENEE AREEKENANTE
B ST A

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETTT
USsD ETT 77,908 63,915
RMB AR 4,981 1,962
82,889 65,877

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

20204 2019412 318 » HE L %
ZERHIM B 5 e U OB R BR Bk 5 AT a0
T

As at 31 December
®12A831H

2019

20194

RMB'000

ARBTFT

Within 30 days 30BA 31,216 37,034
Over 30 days and within 180 days #E3@30H £180H K 49,011 26,799
Over 180 days and within one year HIBISOH E1F R 963 1,296
Over one year and within two years HEIFE2FR 1,022 708
Over two years and within three years  HBiE2F E3F R 637 -
Over three years 8 R34 40 40
82,889 65,877

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade
receivables approximated their carrying amounts. Sales of
products are received in accordance with the terms of the
relevant sales agreements, and due for payment upon the
issuance of invoice.

20204 %2019 12 A31H - B 5 &
WHREAFEHEERmMERT - &
on $5 B AR ¥ 1B B8 5H S 10 5 16 SRR -
W HEEERIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 EFEWREm
The Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS AEEERBBMBEREREESR
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised OB RE  EERBEEYS
from initial recognition of the assets. The expected loss rates BRERABH2HHEE - BHE
are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period BERTEN361E AR 2 1 &~ 3R A
of 36 months and the corresponding historical credit losses ERZEENERE2HEREEE
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are EiE FLEEXTDECHENRBR
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on T BEPABRNGIE 2
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers REKERZ BRI RAENLER -
to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the factors AEBEEHENZEAE  fIMEEE
such as GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods to be EmfEERCBANEERERK
the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical AEEEZ - At BEZERRE
loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. At every REREHAERLEEERE -RNE
reporting date the historical observed default rates are updated HERAH PR BELENEDE
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. EREUEECESHDETON -
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not hold 720204 } 2019512 A31H » A& H
any collateral as security over these debtors. WESEEMNEFRRIERZSEW
HIBZHEA -
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019
20194
ECL Rate
BHEEEEX
Within 30 days 30BN 0.14% 0.08%
Over 30 days and within 180 days @30 £180A 0.32% 0.17%
Over 180 days and within one year BiAISOR E1F N 32.26% 22.77%
Over one year and within two years BBFE2FER 58.33% 77.47%
Over two years BiB2F 100.0% 100.0%
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables BHRNFBREEGESEHNAT
are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE1N2A3MBLFE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARBF T
At the beginning of the year RE ] (957) (453)
Provision for impairment NEREREE (827) (504)
At the end of the year RER (1,784) (957)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 FEfNFIE - e N H#pE

RECEIVABLES &l
As at 31 December
M12831H
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBFT
Prepayments SEANE S
- Advances to suppliers — Al JE 7 B R 5,619 10,266
— Listing expenses - ETHAX = 6,966
- Prepaid income tax - ERREH = 416
- Prepaid value-added tax - FERIEER 810 4,199
Subtotal NER 6,429 21,847
Other receivables H b JE W R IE
- Deposits -%® 892 513
— Advances to employees - FA{E B # K 858 650
- Recoverable value-added tax - Ak HBERH 7,313 3,386
— Amounts due from related parties — JE Uk B B 5 3R
(Note 34(d)) (B £ 34(d)) 409 468
— Others - Hitp 64 911
Subtotal INER 9,536 5,928
Total et 15,965 27,775
Less: Allowance for impairment of R EL A WO IE R (E
other receivables B (212) (209)
15,753 27,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of other receivables
are as follows:

FENFRE ek HME
W FX TE ()

Hth BRI R EREEOZEINT

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31MBLLEE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T
At the beginning of the year RE A (209) (51
Provision for impairment B B (3) (158)
At the end of the year RER (212) (209)
23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 BAFESFABEZZEH

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets

BE

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2019

20194

RMB’'000

ARBFT

Foreign currency forwards (Note a) SN SR HA S K (M it a) 4,726 -
Wealth management products issued by 2 RITEITZIEME R

commercial banks 40,000 -

44,726 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b T EL A )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

~ 2 = =)
23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 BAFEFAABERZZSH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) EEm@m
Financial liabilities TEBE
As at 31 December
M12H318
2019
20194
RMB'000
AREBFT
Foreign currency forwards (Note a) SN ERE X (it a)
— Current - B R = 14,472
Note a: The Group entered into a number of foreign currency forward fifita $§|§Jgﬁ%¥§ﬂﬁiﬁ%$§|\?§éﬁ
agreements with commercial banks for the sale of USD35,000,000 on BH  PAR20209F12 831 E@E*ti
a future date within 1 year at 31 December 2020, with the forward PI#9 R 2k H H 1H £35,000,0003 7T
exchange rates ranged from 6.603% to 6.893%; and for the sale of E$7'\$6-603%§i6~893% PR R
USD59,100,000 on a future date within 1 year at 31 December 2019, 2019124318 B 5t _7¢ P?E"] ik\m
with the forward exchange rates ranged from 6.671% to 6.841%. B ) 11 #559,100,0005% 7T+ E RN T
6.671%%6.841% °
For information about the methods used in determining fair EHEAREERATE 2T EZER
value, please refer to Note 3.3. BLBEMFE3S .
24 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 24 HttREBEE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019
20194
RMB'000
AR T T
Fixed income wealth management FEW = 2B ER
products 20,000 -
20,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25 ReRBEEEEY

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cash on hand FHEERSE 17 30
Cash in banks RITHE 2 98,455 67,118
Cash in other financial institutions REMME#ENER 12,263 695
110,735 67,843

Cash in other financial institutions was related to online sales
and foreign currency forwards, and they classified as cash and

cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are

denominated in the following currencies:

H BB EENRSES L #HEN
YD BEARERREEFEY -

B4 RIS S BN E AU T E
(A

As at 31 December
®12A31H

2019

20194

RMB’000

ARETTT

RMB AR 44,375 42,785
UsD ETT 44,245 24,840
EUR BT 565 218
HKD BT 21,550 -
110,735 67,843

All cash at bank are deposits with original maturity within 3
months. The Group earns interest on cash at bank at floating
bank deposit rates ranged from 0.30% to 1.63% and 0.30%
to 1.94% during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ll‘li\

R LG )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

On 13 November 2018, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
share capital was HKD380,000 at par value of HKD0.001.

26 BRAER KRS ®E

RAFD H2018FE 1M A13EEM S B
B e MM BE - AE
AE 7N £380,00058 7T+ &A% EI{E0.001

T o
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: BETRHEEBR:
Equivalent
Number of Nominal nominal
ordinary value of value of Share
shares shares shares premium
BB EE
EERHE ROREEE BEZHE 105 B
HKD RMB RMB’000
BT AR ARETRT
1 January 2020 F2020F 1418 70,000 70 61 163,681
Shares issued pursuant to RIER ) BERETT
Capitalisation shares (Note a) B {n (#/ita) 299,930,000 299,930 265,615 (266)
New shares issued pursuant to  1RIE R (DB EE1TH
the share offer (Note b) Bt (#12Eb) 105,042,000 105,042 93,091 106,863
Dividend paid (Note 31) BRI B (H7 i#31) N/A N/A N/A (20,625)
NEA NEA NEA
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 405,042,000 405,042 358,767 249,653
Notes: Bt -
(a) Pursuant to the proposed offering of the Company’s shares, on 16 (a) RIEARBR2020F 1 A16BEZFHER

January 2020, the Company issued additional 299,930,000 shares,
credited as fully paid, to the existing shareholders of the Company,
by way of capitalisation of HKD299,930 (approximately RMB266,000)
standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium account.

On 16 January 2020, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Stock Exchange. In connection with the listing, 100,000,000 shares of
HKDO0.001 each were issued at the offer price of HKD1.28 with gross
proceeds of HKD128,000,000 (approximately RMB113,356,000). In the
current financial period, approximately RMB89,000 was credited to
the share capital account and approximately RMB101,065,000 net of
expenses related to issuance of shares of approximately RMB12,202,000
was credited to the share premium account.

On 5 February 2020, 5,042,000 over-allotment shares were issued and
allotted by the Company at HKD1.28 with proceeds of HKD6,454,000
(approximately RMB5,801,000). In the current financial period,
approximately RMB5,000 was credited to the share capital account
and approximately RMB5,797,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

(b)

W ZRAERAA

R RARBAAR R G ERN#E
B8R #8299,9307% 7T (X9 A R #266,0007T)
BREXR  BHRARBIBERRET
299,930,000 /% A BR 21 VE &1 B ) A {7 ©

202051168 » AR 2 &) IR 9 7 B 2
FrEmegEmms AQRINUNEE
&1.287% JT % 77100,000,0000% & A% @
H0.001T B TR - FIBRIBLEAR
128,000,000 7t (4] A R#113,356,000
TT) o RANBIEERRS - #) A R¥E89,0007T
BABRAEE - 4 A KRB101,065,0007T
(MBEERMBETHEENAIOARE
12,202,0007T 1% ) # A B& 17 4 (B AR ©

20202 A5H A QR BA1.287 JT #
77 % B2 %5,042,000 0% #B 5 Ao 35 B 1)
Fff 18 3 18 /526,454,000 7T (K A B
5,801,0007T) A A BF BB - 49 A
R #5,000T @ AR - M AR
5,797,0007T Bl # A BR ) &= B8R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;£2020412A318 I £ &

27 OTHER RESERVES

164

27 Httf#E#E

Capital Statutory  Translation  Total other
reserves reserves  differences reserves
Hit
ERFEE EE R REEZH REHRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTET
As at 1 January 2020 ®2020F181A (72,629) 38,020 53 (34,556)
Exchange differences on BNEBBE
translation of foreign X =%
operations - - (51) (51)
Appropriation to statutory BEBEZETEHE
reserves (Note a) (K ita) = 4,760 = 4,760
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31H (72,629) 42,780 2 (29,847)
As at 1 January 2019 R201951H18 (72,629) 33,070 46 (39,513)
Exchange differences on BNEBME 2
translation of foreign BE N E R
operations - - 7 7
Appropriation to statutory BEBEZETHBE
reserves (Note a) (Hfita) - 4,950 N 4,950
As at 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H (72,629) 38,020 53 (34,556)
(a) In accordance with the PRC Company Law, certain subsidiaries of the (a) BRIBC(PERRE)  KEBRPREM

Group incorporated in the PRC are required to allocate 10% of their
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC
accounting standards, to their respective statutory surplus reserves until
the reserves reach 50% of their respective registered capital. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the PRC Company Law, part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be converted to share capital, provided
that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25%

of the registered capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 EZNRHMENKRE
As at 31 December
®12H31H

2019
20194
RMB’'000
AR F T

Trade payables due to third parties ENE=ZF2ESEN
RIB 45,845 19,452

Other payables due to: ERUATALZ

H fth & < 5)1A 5,398 12,719
- related parties (Note 34(d)) - BEEE 5 (B 7 34() - 269
— third parties -%=5 5,398 12,450
Staff salaries and welfare payables ENBEFHE LB 5,624 13,546
Accrued taxes other than income tax FE ST 1B (BT 15 FiBR 4N) 1,472 1,098
58,339 46,815

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all trade and other
payables of the Group were non-interest bearing.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the majority of the Group’s trade and other payables
were denominated in RMB.

Ageing analysis of trade payables to third parties and
related parties based on invoice date at the respective
year/period end dates was as follows:

(@ 2020 K% 201912 A318 » K"&E
EfMEESREMENREAR

B o
o

(b) & £2020%F &2019412H31H
HFE AEBRBLESRHE
M R IES R AREEE -

© REF/HPERZABRBER

FHENE=T BB ZE

SRENKARKDWET

As at 31

December

M12H831H

2019

20194F

RMB’'000

ARBTFT

Within one year 1FELAA 45,428 18,453
Over one year and within two years FBBIFEE2FER 195 311
Over two years 8 382 F 222 688
45,845 19,452

W ZRAERAA
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iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

29 LEASE LIABILITIES

29 HEESE

166

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019
20194
RMB’000
AR T T
Minimum lease payments due K EEENK
- Within 1 year - MER 3,950 4,232
- Between 1 and 2 years - 1224 2,201 3,764
- Between 2 and 5 years - 2E5%F 32 2,146
6,183 10,142
Less: Future finance charges WoARKRBEER (248) (608)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 5,935 9,534
Minimum lease payments due BB (KM &N
— Within 1 year - MER 3,759 3,863
- Between 1 and 2 years - 1224 2,144 3,580
- Between 2 and 5 years - 2&54F 32 2,091
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE 5,935 9,534

The Group leases warehouses, factory workshops and
shopping mall counters. These lease liabilities were measured
at net present value of the lease payments to be paid during
the lease terms. Certain of the lease liabilities were payable
to related parties (Note 34(d)).

Lease liabilities were discounted at incremental borrowing rate.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities was 4.75%.

For the total cash outflows for leases including payments of

lease liabilities and payments of interest expenses on leases
are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30

iR B R R MY A |

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

30 IEEIEFTB M

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARET T
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE
- to be recovered within 12 months - FR1218 AR E 510 3,043
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities KEBEEBER - aEERE 24
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, taking £R - BLE 20204 22019412 4318 1
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same FENRLCAEHEERABBECE
tax jurisdiction, is as follows: E)JONNE
Allowance Financial
on assets and
doubtful  Accrued liabilities  Accrued  Right-of- Lease Tax
debts payroll  at FVPL expenses use assets liabilities losses Total
BRATE
FAB#Z
SREER
REEE EOHM 8 WERMEX FAEEE HESE HEFB @
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 R2020%181A 167 280 2,207 170 (2,125) 2,253 91 3,043
(Charged)/credited to the SV N 1=
Consolidated statement 2EMHEE
of profit or loss 9% 62 (2,936) (60) 969 (1,002) 340 (2,533)
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 261 342 (729) 110 (1,156) 1,251 431 510
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%181A 129 387 231 359 (1,131) 1,163 - 1,138
(Charged)/credited to the  (H1f})/FHA&HA
Consolidated statement 2EMEE
of profit or loss 38 (107) 1,976 (189) (994) 1,090 91 1,905
At 31 December 2019 R2019%128318 167 280 2,207 170 (2,125) 2,253 91 3,043
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#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

30

31

168

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profit is probable. Tax losses
of Group companies operated in the PRC could be carried
forward for a maximum of five years. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to
RMB32,371,000 (2019: RMB21,166,000).

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB4,221,000 (31 December 2019: RMB3,448,000) were not
recognised for the withholding tax (tax rate of 5% or 10%)
and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts are permanently
reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
RMB84,418,000 at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB68,957,000).

30 EZE TS e

A A BE R IB R R FE SR TR A B IR AR RS
M AepnsE s fiEEERE
RELEFBREE - 2EBERFRE
ENETARNBEBERTAE RS
AF o B E2020F12A31HILFE -
AEEWEEREBTEBIENIET
FIsHEESEAARE32,371,000
70 (20194 : A R#21,166,0007T) °

P2020F 12831 BIEFTE R &
& AR #4,221,0007T (2019412 A31
B A R#3,448,0007T) 3 & 5t & T
B B8 A &) B0 oK B U 25 7E R E LA
B 8 1B (B R B5% 5610%) & H b
TIE - BARERKARAREBERE -
P2020F12 8318 » REHHW S
H 4B A R 84,418,000 (20194
12A31H : A R#68,957,0007T) °

DIVIDENDS R E
Year ended 31 December
BEZNRAMBLEE
2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARETIT
Dividends &% & 20,625 -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
declared and paid dividends of HK$0.06 per share to its then
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no dividends were
declared and paid by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32 HEeREH
(@) Cash generated from operations () REMBRE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019
20194
RMB’'000
AR T T
Profit before income tax K P15 554 B s A 48,062 32,568
Adjustments for: 4R
- Amortisation of intangible assets - & & /&= # 48
(Note 17) (Htat17) 639 419
— Depreciation of property, plant - BERZE
and equipment (Note 15) & (K at15) 7,850 3,638
- Amortisation and depreciation of - {# AR E & # 1 &
right-of-use assets (Note 18) e it18) 4,513 2,444
— Depreciation of investment -REMEFRE
properties (Note 16) (K1aE16) 111 -
- Net impairment loss on financial -SREEZRE
assets (Note 21, 22) [ Ri=0ER-]
(Wtat21 - 22) 830 662
— Net losses on disposal of property, - HEWE BWEK
plant and equipment (Note 10) RERNEIEFRE
(Ktat10) 72 38
- Net gains on disposal of -HECHEEEN
right-of-use assets (Note 70) Wz % 8
(B #£10) (118) -
— Net fair value gains on wealth -EERITEITZ
management products issues by BYWERZ
commercial banks N EW = FRE (487) -
- Fixed income from wealth -BUWEmZERE
management products g z= (386) -
— Finance (income)/costs (Note 11) - B (Mss) B AR
(Btat11) (499) 395
Changes in working capital: LEESED:
- Inventories -FE (12,360) (3,410)
— Trade receivables - B 5B FHIE (12,593) (1,724)
— Prepayments, deposits and other — — JEfHFIE « & &
receivables oAb [ W R IE (390) (6,537)
- Financial assets and liabilities at - BRAFEFABRELZ
fair value through profit or loss cTHMEEREBRE (19,198) 12,933
- Contract liabilities -5HEE (235) 1,626
— Trade and other payables - B RAEMENKIE 22,626 (9,238)
Cash generated from operations KEmBzERS® 38,437 33,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 32 REREHRmW
(b) In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal (b) RBEE2RERRN HEME.
of property, plant and equipment comprise: BEREBZFSHRERRE:

Year ended 31 December
BZE1RAMBLEEE

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T

Net book amount (Note 15) BREFE (A 715) 162 56
Losses on disposal of property, plant HE®ME - BENXE
and equipment (Note 10) &8 (K 5E10) (72) (38)

90 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 32 BERER @
(c) Net debt reconciliation ) FEEBEYER
Lease Lease
liabilities liabilities
due within due after
one year one year Total
R—ERIH R—F#IY
2HEEE ZHEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTRET ARETR

Net debt as at 1 January 20194

2019 1812 FEE (1,870) (3,546) (5,416)
Addition NE (1,903) (4,085) (5,988)
Cash flows Ben=E 1,870 - 1,870
Reclassification B (1,960) 1,960 -

Net debt as at 31 December 720194
2019 1283182
FAE (3,863) (5,671) (9,534)

Net debt as at 1 January  R2020%F

2020 1B1AZREE (3,863) (5,671) (9,534)
Addition NE (760) (931) (1,691)
Disposal & 322 666 988
Cash flows Behs 4,302 - 4,302
Reclassification EFOME (3,760) 3,760 -

Net debt as at 31 December 420204
2020 1283182
FEE (3,759) (2,176) (5,935)

Wi ZRERAT —TS=SFFH 1/
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iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

33 COMMITMENTS 33

(@) Operating lease commitments — as
lessee

The Group leases certain shopping mall counters under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements within 1
year contract periods. Majority of the lease agreements
are signed with related parties at market price.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
these short-term non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

A EE

(@)

Within one year 1F AR
Over one year and within two years FBiEB14 &2F K

ReMEER - FRE
A

AEBRBETABELERD
HAETEE AHHA—F
W REHMEAOTEBEET

ZEMRTAREELEHEON
ARKEHENK@BENT:

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2019
20194
RMB’000
AR T T
1,186 546

41 -

(b) Operating lease commitments — as
lessor

The Group rents out factory workshop to a third party
under a non-cancellable operating lease agreement. The
lease term is within 6 years, and the lease agreements
are signed with third parties.

The future aggregate minimum lease income under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(b)

Within one year 1F AR
Over one year and within two years FBB1FEZE2ER
Over two years 25

RERERR - FRE
A

7 BRI A G ETL
ME=FHHEIBEM A%

HEARNFR HODEE=T
BHERE -

ZEERTAREEEHEON
ARZFEBEERSEARELT

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2019
20194
RMB’000
AR T T
1,080 -
1,080 -
3,195 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S EL T LE )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

33 COMMITMENTS (continued) 33 E#EEHmW
(c) Capital commitments () BEAREE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for as at 7R2020F K2019F12A31H <~
31 December 2020 and 2019 but not recognised as EEARNERERAREBENEX
liabilities is as follows: BARZIT:

As at 31 December
#W12831H

2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 1,961 2,979
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BB ARG
(@) Names and relationship with related () AT BN EBE S
parties iy 8 %

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the M—rF B NEESHEEES
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party B —HE S EVEL B S
or exercise significant influence over the other party in KERrRETEEERTEN
making financial and operation decisions. Parties are also AR ARAEN - 0K
considered to be related if they are subject to common EXHREHIRS - BIFH IR

control. WREBZBEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F 128318 It FE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BB AR Z )
(Continued)
(@) Names and relationship with related () BB R EWREREL
parties (Continued) Y B8 % ()
The following is a summary of the significant transactions LA & & 220204 2019412
carried out between the Group and its related parties in A318 15 E 7 5 [ 5 H B B
the ordinary course of business during the years ended TR —BEBBRAEPETNE
31 December 2020 and 2019, and balances arising from ARG E - AR 2020%F K&
related party transactions as at 31 December 2020 and 2019F 12 A3MHM B H X5
2019. LR
Name of related parties Nature of relationship
BB S AR BERMEE
Mr. Jin Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
®EE REERERR
Ningbo Kwung's Investment Holdings Co., Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
ENBEHEREZERBR QA RETERRRZES 2B
Shaoxing Shi Jingming Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder
A B R RETERRRZES 2B
Ningbo Internet Trading Culture Development Co., Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling
Limited Shareholder
EREHHBEE X LERARAA BREERBRRZES 2 ERE
Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural Development Co., Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling
Limited Shareholder
ERBRTIXICERAGR AR RETERRRZES 2B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 BEER R Z )

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(b) HEABLTHNRS

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE
2019
20194
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Loans borrowed from a related party ——%& EiHE 18142 B
= Mr. Jin -&EE = 6,861
Repayment of loans borrowed from a (&7 —% BH# 7 EA
related party B B %
= Mr. Jin - &N HE 269 6,592
Payment on behalf of a related parties 1t 2 5B 77 69 17 3¢
- Ningbo Internet Trading Culture - EREHRE
Development Co., Limited XbERAR
NS 1,083 418
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural - ERETXLER
Development Co., Limited BRAF 2,238 -
3,321 418
Repayment from a related party 7 5 7 A2 X
- Ningbo Internet Trading Culture - BERBEHREE
Development Co., Limited XibERAR
NS 1,501 -
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural - EREBETXER
Development Co., Limited BRAA] 2,894 -
4,395 =
Expenses paid by a related party on — FE AR EFZE (2
behalf of the group HE
- Shaoxing Shi Jingming — A B = A 666 -
Repayment to a related party ] — 5 B B 77 22 K
- Shaoxing Shi Jingming - 4 B R B 666 -
WHtZERERAT —T—TFEFRHR /5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B 3R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management. Other than those for directors as disclosed
in Note 34, no compensations were paid or payable
to senior management during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

(d)

Balances with related parties

34 BEER R Z )

(9]

(d)

BEREEEASHMN

HAREEAEREEERSR
EEE BRWEMEENES
G+ B 2202049 2019412 A
BB FEYEENREND
BEBEEOFTH -

B2 RA B 5 BV A5 BR

As at 31 December

M12831H
2019
20194
RMB'000
AREFT
Amounts due from related parties & 4% 5 B 77 #
Non-trade: HEZ
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural -BERETER
Development Co., Limited BRAF] 359 -
- Ningbo Internet Trading Culture - BREHRHZEE
Development Co., Limited XALEEBRAA = 418
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming - 4= A 50 50
409 468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S EL T LE )

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) Balances with related parties (continued)

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured,

interest-free, repayable on demand.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

34 BEER R Z )

(d) BB S MY & 8k )

B T RARERN 2
EREERER -

As at 31 December
M12H318
2019
20194
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Amounts due to related parties JET BB 77 30 R
Lease liabilities: HEARE:
- Shaoxing Shi Jingming - A= 8 919 2,244
- Ningbo Kwung's Investment -ERBEHREZER
Holdings Co., Limited BRAF] = 1,302
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural -BERBITXER
Development Company BRAA
Limited 4,086 -
5,005 3,546
Non-trade: HES:
- Mr. Jin -®NE = 269
5,005 3,815

W ZRAERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 35 EEmIRIZERESR

As of the date of issue of these financial statements, the
directors of the Company are as follows:

RBEMEZEMBHRERAY  ARAE
=M

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Jin BEE

Mr. Ru Liming LRk A

Mr. Tian Dong HER%EE

Non-executive director FHITES

Mr. Patrick Shao A8 5 A&

Independent non-executive directors BYKEHTES

Mr. Zhou Kai A%k E

Mr. Yang Herong 15 % &

Mr. Lai Chun Yu BIRFhE

(a) Directors’ emoluments @ EEM£
The directors received emoluments from the Group (in H =20208 128318 L F & -
their role as senior management and employee before EEEAEEMEEN S (2

their appointment as directors respectively) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as follows:

Name %A

HEZEREEZANHAS
LREEEMEESMWT:

Executive directors BTE=E

Mr. Jin EHRE = = =

Mr. Tian Dong HRLAE 255 = 255

Mr. Ru Liming MRALE = = =

Non-executive director kBTES

Mr. Shao Patrick A L& = = =

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Zhou Kai B8 5% E 77 - 77

Mr. Yang Herong BAELE 77 = 77

Mr. Lai Chun Yu BRFEE 172 - 172
581 = 581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020%12A31H IFFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 35 EEmMRERERE @

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) EEM =
The directors received emoluments from the Group (in H E2019F 128318 - F & -
their role as senior management and employee before EEEAEEFBENME (E
their appointment as directors respectively) for the year HEZEARES RN AINUE
ended 31 December 2019 as follows: HEEEREESHWOT:
Housing
allowances and
contributions
to a retirement
Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
FEEER
Name #4 B e AL RIRETEIHR Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETL ARBETT ARETT
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Jin e RAE - - - - -
Mr. Tian Dong S - 226 - - 226
Mr. Ru Liming MARREE - 226 - - 226
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Shao Patrick A L& - - - - -
Independent non-executive @ BIFHTEES
directors
Mr. Zhou Kai Asl % AE - - - - -
Mr. Yang Herong BREEE - - - - -
Mr. Lai Chun Yu RiRFRAE - - - - -

- 452 - - 452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#ra B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012A31H IFFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

(Continued)

180

(b)

(c)

(d)

Retirement benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no additional retirement benefits received by
the directors except for the contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme in accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC.

Termination benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no termination benefits received by the
directors.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available the services of
directors

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no consideration was paid for making available the
services of the directors or senior management of the
Company.

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020

(b)

(c)

(d)

35 EENFERER@®

EESNRAKEF

#H Z£ 20204 M2019412 A31H
IEFE - BRABE R B &K
Bl Ky 3R R 2@ F 58I R - E
BEWARESEINGRKEF -

ESNERBERN

#H E2020% &2019412 8318
HFE BFTRESHBE
A o

AESEERBOE=
FRENKE

#H E20204 &2019412 /8318
EFE BEINRENES
KAREZERSREREEOR
ﬁ% o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R MY R )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, bodies corporate controlled
by and entities connected with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into
by the Company or subsidiaries of the Company, where
applicable, in favour of directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
borrowed RMB5,077,000 from Mr. Jin and repaid
RMB4,808,214. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Kwung’'s HK borrowed RMB1,784,000 from Mr.
Jin and then fully repaid.

Director’s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Except for mentioned above and those disclosed
elsewhere in Note 33, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or subsidiaries of the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 December 2020 and 2019 or at any time
during the years then ended.

35 EENRH

x I & o)

() LEE ZHBWEEM

(f)

W ZRAERAA

EHREAERBRER
FHENEERBRAZHEA
MEX  BUERRH
b XX Z K HEHEE

H E2020F 128318 L F & -
AR E ARG KB AR (a0
BR)BENESAESIH AGIY
FRER BUBRKEMR
% °

H E2019F 128318 - F & -
RRAREELERBAARE
5,077,000 * WEEE AR
4,808,2147T » 8 =2019412 A
BMHEFEE BEEERES L
A B A ANRE1,784,0000T » I
REBBEERE -

EENXE  ZHIHSE
W2EKRER

Br ESCATE R BT AE33AT IR B
F SN - 720209 &2019F12 A
BNHRHEZSEHHILEFER
EREM ARFHARAZ
B AR MEI L HAEEE
BERE BARRESERHS
BEERSBMEESNEMNE
ARG THREL -

—E-2EEH 18]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ll\li\

& B 3% R M A (|

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020F12831HILFE

36 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

182

position

As at 31 December 2020

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@) The Company’s statements of financial

AR T B HROR R B 4 2
B

(@) A2 T HYBF B ik R 3R

2020512 A31H

As at 31 December

R12A318
2019
20194
Note RMB’'000
k=3 AREBFT
Assets BE
Non-current asset (nRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary HE—RHBRF a 163,681 163,681
Current assets nBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U 28 B 7 B3R b 63,652 -
Prepayments and other receivables  TE 13 378 & E fth f& Uk
I8 196 5,636
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBReEEY 22,703 2,491
Total current assets REEERLE 86,551 8,127
Total assets EEH#E 250,232 171,808
Equity Ex
Share “capital A 26 359 -
Share premium Bt it 8 26 249,653 163,681
Accumulated losses Z&5tE1E e (20,032) (13,783)
Total equity EREH 229,980 149,898
Current liabilities mEBE
Amount due to ultimate controlling  J& - 5 #% 3% A% A% 5
shareholder KIA c = 269
Amounts due to subsidiaries J& < M B8 1 =) 7k I8 d 19,807 -
Accruals and other payables FE 5T B FA R H M FE A
A 445 21,641
Total liabilities BEAR 20,252 21,910
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEERH 250,232 171,808
The Company’'s statement of financial position was AN E) R B S R O RIE AR A
approved by the board of directors of the Company on EFEN2021F3A31BHER
31 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf by: e TRTHEEREES

JIN Jianxin
SEH
Executive director

HiTEE

KWUNG'S HOLDINGS LIMITED = Annual Report 2020

TIAN Dong
MR

Executive director

HiTEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S EL T LE )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F12A31HILFE

36 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 36 NN T B AR R K a2
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) B )
(b) Notes to the Company’s statement of (b) Z<2 T\ B AR R R M &
financial position
Note a: Investment in a subsidiary represents the investment in Kita: RHEBARMNKRERERELIR
Kwung's investments. BWIRE -
Note b:  Amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 Htatb : F2020F12A318 @ EURHE
represented the intercompany borrowings. RNRAIFIERERAFHEEBE -
Note ¢ Amount due to ultimate controlling shareholder as at 31 HfaFc: 720199128318 @ BN &K
December 2019 represented the shareholder loan payable to AR IR R R IE IR PR R AR 4R
ultimate controlling shareholder Mr. Jin. and was paid during BRRESEENRRER @ I
the year ended 31 December 2020. See Note 34(d). REE2020F12A31BILFE
MELELN - FBERMF
34(d) °
Note d- Amounts due to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 mainly Htatd - FA2020%F12 A318 B FE H B
represented the listing expenses paid by subsidiaries on behalf RRAIRBFZHEMBARNRA
of the group. EEXNz EWAX -
Note e:  Movements of accumulated losses Mite: ZRETEBZEH

Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020F 1818 & &4 (13,783)
Comprehensive loss 2EEBR

Loss for the year FREE (6,249)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020F 128318 & &4 (20,032)

Accumulated losses

2itEE

RMB'000

ARBFT

Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1818 M & &4 -
Comprehensive loss 2EEBR

Loss for the year FAERE (13,783)

Balance at 31 December 2019 M20195F12 A31B M & 8k (13,783)

Wi ZRERAT —T=—TFFH /33



SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HHBERRE
Year ended 31 December
BZNANBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 20174 20165
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFRT ARBTR ARETR
Revenue LON 472,179 501,131 444,704 445,860 399,473
Gross profit £ 7 108,149 133,679 107,029 96,521 81,195
Operating profit A 47,563 32,963 88,881 43,468 53,082
Profit before income tax BR FT15 4 A0 4 A 48,062 32,568 88,808 43,491 52,861
Income tax expense FEHHX (7,306) (4,758) (11,757) (5,845) (7,329)
Total comprehensive income ~ ARRIHEEAEEEFR
for the year, attributable o~ 2 A5
owners of the Company 40,795 27,827 77,059 37,696 45,627

Earnings

per share for profits AR A A 1 5 F

attributable to owners of the ~ MIBREF (BEK
Company (expressed in RMB AR & R)

per share)
- Basic and diluted -BEANES 10.2 cents & 93 cents & 257 cents & 125 cents & 15.2 cents &
As at 31 December
W12A318

2019 2018 2017 2016
2019 20184 201745 20165
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AR¥®Tnr AREBTR ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 68,763 71,545 48,240 78,418 75,834
Current assets MEBEE 327,350 203,000 362,478 168,423 140,437
Total assets BELE 396,113 274,545 410,718 246,841 216,271
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 2,176 5,671 3,546 - -
Current liabilities mEaE 68,193 70,154 236,271 48,052 40,584
Total liabilities BEeE 70,369 75,825 239,817 48,052 40,584
Total equity BRER 325,744 198,720 170,901 198,789 175,687
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KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEENERDERTEREIFRENITOE629AE
Unit 629A, 6th Floor, Star House, No. 3 Salisbury Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

T % Tel @ +852 3110 1839
48 bk URL : http://www.kwungs.com
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